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Overview

Financial results for the year to June 2012
show solid forward momentum, with the Group
growing revenues by 13% to £139.9 million and
headline profits by 24% to £7.8 million.

We have continued to deliver on what we
set out to do - double-digit revenue growth
on steadily improving profit margins.
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Business Highlights

We have continued with our strategy of

o
<
&
2
o
o
L
o)
<
@
£
@
£

* Expanding our presence in Emerging Marksts

« Developing our Advanced Solution capabllities &
3
+ Building on our strong niche positions 8
@
l'e]
Other highlights include: §
* Double digit growth g
* Acquisthon of HDM on 31 August 2012 for the headline price
of €6.5 milhon, adding operahons in Spain, Mexico and Argentina T
a
* Acquisition of a Swedish business formerly owned by Anovo §
in January 2012 for €0.25 million 2
* Operations established in USA (Tampa, Flonda) focused on our g
Advanced Solutions business for cable TV operators 2
* Significant contract win with Virgin Media and a significant
contract extension with Wincor Nixdorf o
H
Key Financial Highlights H
g
Revenue Headline Operating Profit* §
0, o
£1399m +13% £7.8m  +24%
Up from £123 8m n 2011 Up from £6 3m mn 201 |
2012 2012
20m 20m
Operating Profit Net Debt
O, o)
£2.1Im +250% £29m  -25%
Up from £0 6m n 2011 Down from £3 8m in 2011
2012 2012
20m 2011
Basic Earnings per Share (Pence) Adjusted Earnings Per Share {(Pence)**
(o)
3.33p 13.85p +13%
Up from a toss of 1 85p in 2011 Up from 12 26p 1n 2011
2012 2012
201 [BJ 0 85p) 201

* Headline opertling profit exciudes exceptional restructuring costs, amortisation of impairment of acquired inangible assets, sharg-based payments and share of results of
jointly controfled sntitles.

- Adjusted eamings are stated bafore amortisation orimpairment of acquired i gible assets, exeptional ing costs, equisition costs, and share-based payments.

Regenaersis PIc | Report and Accounts 2012




2 Business overview

Regenersis at a Glance

Regenersis is a leading outsourcing partner to many of the
world’s leading consumer technology companies. The Group
has businesses in 12 countries serving large clients in multiple
geographies and is organised under three reporting segments;
Emerging Markets, Western Europe and Advanced Solutions.

Mexico e

Argentina
o

Sweden x4
©
UK x4 Russia ()
© ) ®Poland
Germany x3 (QRomania
OTurkey
Spain
South Africa

Emerging Markets

Western Europe

Advanced Solutions

Regenersis is a market-leading repairer

of electronic consumer products In high
growth emerging markets including Potand,
Romania, Russia {a 50% |oint venture),
South Afnca, Turkey, Mexico and Argentina

* Market leader in Poland

+ Growing demand from new and
existing customers in Romania

* Increasing demand from joint
venture in Russia

+  New terntones added in Mexico
and Argentina

Regenersis is a market-leading repairer
of electronic consumer and business
products {8 g mohbile phones, ‘Chip
and Pin’ machines} in the LUK, Germany,
Sweden (a 50% Joint venture) and Spain

s A market leader in combined logistics,
screening and repair serices
»  Growing provider of services
for financial, medical and
industnal products
¢ Acquired joint ventura in Sweden
providing entry point in Nordic market
¢ New terntory added in Spain

Regenersis provides technically dnven
solutions and 1s a market-leading repairer
of media products including TVs and
set-top boxas

Innovative devetoper of in-field testing
equipment for set-top boxes
Significant progress in the
development of overseas clients
Expanded range of services to include
Recommerce and Digital Care
Business Process Qutsourcing services
reducing costs for aur customers
Operation established in USA

(Tampa, Flonda}

Revenue Revenue Revenue

54] .3m (2011 £43 2m) 579.7m {2011 £631m) S.I 8.8m {2011 £17 5m)
Proportion of Proportion of Proportion of

Group Revenue Group Revenue Group Revenue

30%

57%

13%

Report and Accounts 2012 | Regenersis Plc




Business overview 3

Our Services

Regenersis specialises in the field of after-sales, enabling
our clients to define and deliver service propositions that
reinforce their brands, build stronger relationships with
their customers, and do so cost-effectively.

Major products and services Major strengths Major chients
> We provide our clients with Five reasons why Regenersis
a range of services is in a prime posltion for
future growth HIC First Data

* Complex Repair
* Business Process Qutsourcing ] >
*+ Returns Management

Regenersis has well defined product Intermec (e
+ Recommerce and service offerings, with clear

teams and owners
* Digital Care
* In-Field Testing and Licensing 2 )

Nokia 02

The matnx of products and geographies
> For a wide range of products builds on the strengths, assets and

relationships of Regenearsis It is the way
+* Mobile devices the Company will translate its strategy

for growth 1n Ermerging Markets and Samsung Sony
* Laptops, tablets Advanced Solutions en the ground

and ultrabooks

*+ Settop boxes 3 )

* Televisions Regenersis has a very strong and
experienced management team focused
on operational excellence consistantly
across the whole Group

4 >

Regenerss has excellent working
relationships with our clients and
continues to be recognised as ther
long-term partner

5>

Regenersis 1s well placed both
geographically and with Its blue-chip
customer base to exploit the rapid
growth of consumer electronics in
emerging markets

Telenor Group  Virgin Media

*» Medical devices

Wincor Nixdorf Fujitsu

Regenersis Plc | Report and Accounts 2012
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4 Business overviow

Executive Chairman’s Statement

“Our plan, to deliver double digit sales
growth on steadily improving operating
profit margins, concentrating on Emerging
Markets, Advanced Solutions and niche
product areas, is firmly underway. in the
past nine months, we have extended the
Group's operations into Spain, Mexico,

Argentina, Sweden and the USA."

Mahhew Peacock
Executive Charman

The opportunity exists for us to build a sizeable multinational
provider of aftermarket services and technology to global
technology clients Our am 1s to do so This first full year of
results dunng my tenure as Chawrman has delivered not only
a year of solid growth, under the new strategy introduced

in June 2011, but also the first steps in delivenng this vision

I would like to thank all of our employees and customers

for their part in making this year a suceess Our revenue
increased by 13% to £139 9 million and headline operating
profit improved by 24% to £7 8 milllon We have continued
to deliver on what we set out to do - double-digit revenue
growth on steadity tmproving profit margins

Cash flow management, dunng the course of the year, mproved
with operating cash flow of £4 9 million (2011 £2 4 mulion) Net
debt at the year-end was just £2 9 million (2011 £3 8 millon}

This performance has been delivered against a challenging
backdrop of change In our sector, with some of our largest
clients suffering well-publicised and very matenal volume
declines In response we have rebalanced orgamcally and
by acquisition, towards faster-growing clients, geographies
and service lnes | am particularly pleased that we have
entered Mexico and the USA and that we have organicaily
grown new Advanced Solutions offerings in Digital Care
and Recommerce

A year into the new strategy and with the imitial tumaround
activities behind us, we have a stronger business, well
placed in its market with an outstanding management team,
of which | am proud We have continued to invest to support
future growth We have absorbed the costs of organic
market entry to Turkey and South Afnca We have made
important personnel changes, additions and improvements,
in¢luding our new Non-executive director, Kevin Bradshaw,
new CFO, Jog Dhody, as well as extemally-hired teams
dedicated to Recommerce and Digital Care, and new sales
directors in the USA, Turkey, South Africa and Poland

The acquisition of HDM 1s, | believe, an outstanding deal for
the Group HDM bnngs a talented team and an operation

Report and Accounts 2012 | RegensersisPic

with an industry reputation for excellence It takes us directly
Into new Emerging Markets in Mexico and Argentina and
opens other Latn American avenues from a perspective

of clients, language, and culture Spain 1s a key European
market, home to Telefonica, and also bnngs to Regenersis
a large boost in its presence with Samsung | would like to
welcome, again, all of ocur new colleagues

As aresult of these actions, we now have a footpnnt of

22 sites, In 12 countries across three continents Seven of
these countnes were opened or acquired since the new
Board took over in March 2011 We have nine well-defined
product and service offenngs with clear teams and owners,
of which four have been developed in this period This matrix
of geographies and products matters enormously because
(1) it 1s how we leverage and build on our strengths, assets
and refationships and (2) it 18 how we translate cur strategy
for growth in Emerging Markets and Advanced Solutions
into acton on the ground We currently offer products and
services to approximately 25 percent of the total universe
of opportunities available to us, offenng clear and present
opportunities for growth Please see Matnx of services and
geographies on page 8

Emerging Markets

Overall, revenue declined marginally to £41 milion

Headhne operating profit also reduced marginally to £4 6
millon These results reflect the negative mpact of declines
in sales of new devices by some of our large mobile clients in
Poland and Romania, the Group's relatively lower exposure

in the period to fast-growing brands such as Samsung and
Apple and start up investment in South Afnca The Group has,
however, made signrficant progress in rebalancing this mix
dunng the year

The new temtories opened in 2010/11, Turkey and South
Afnca, have shown very good progress over therr first year of
operation We continue to focus on both organic and acquisitive
routes into new markets The recent acquisition of the HDM
business will also give access to Mexico and Argentina
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Wastern Europe

Waestern Europe compnsed principally UK and Germany,
although Sweden was brought into the segment during
the year Spain will be part of the segment in the next year
Overall revenue increased 26% to £80 million due matnly
to growth from new contract wins in the UK and Germany
Headline aperating profit grew by 38% to £2 1 million,
reflecting restructuning and cost reductions in the

UK operations

Advanced Solutions

Advanced Solutions included our innovative services tn set
top box repair and repar avoidance, as well as technically
driven solutions in other markets Overall revenue increased
89% to £19 milhon Headhne operating profit grew by 20%
to £2 8 milkon Agam, we are pursuing both organic and
acquisitive routes to expand our business in this area

Dunng the year, a significant contract for the supply of the
in-field testing product was signed by Virgin Media This will
include a phased roll out of these urits to therr field engineers
Since the year end, our technology has been successfully
pilloted by a large US cable TV company and | am very
pleased tc report that a roll-out agreement has now been
secured We have also expanded our range of service
offerings to include

* Recommerce - which offers a repair refurbishment
and onward resale of mobile devices in collaboration
with our major chents

+ Digital Care — which provides a range of extended
warranty and insurance services to end customers
through intermedianes covenng mobile, media and
other portable consumer electronic equipment

* Business Process Outsourcing - which buidds on
our vendor management services, running the repair
function for our customers and the retall network on
thewr behalf in selected geographies

The Board continues to focus on realising the strategy and
on achieving operational excellence consistently across

the whole Group The strategy requires us to build on our
existing presence, especially in Emerging Markets and in
Advanced Solutions, areas in which superior opportumities
for shareholder value creation are achievable The strategy
also emphasises bullding strong niche posittons, which tend
to have supenor margin charactenstics Itis noteworthy that
profits from this area now equate to 30% of the Group's
profits, before corporate costs

Acquisition of Anovo Nordic

On 23 January 2012, we purchased a 50% share in
Anove Nordic, which was renamed Regenersis Nordic AB
This business has a good market share tn mobile repair in
Sweden and gives us an entry point into the Nordic market

Acquisition of HDM

On 31 August 2012, we completed the acquisiion of HDM
which has operations in Spain, Mexico and Argentina

Its results will be consolidated in the coming year from

1 September 2012

Banking facilities

Dunng the year, we extended our banking facilities from

£15 mulion to £23 25 million for the penod to October 2015,
providing significant funding to undertake further investment
and M&A activity

Dividend

In ine with the Board’s policy to recommence paytng a
dividend to shareholders, the Board 1s recommending

a final dividend of 11 pence per ordinary share, to be
paid on 5 December 2012 to shareholders on the register
on 9 November 2012 Based on the Board's anticipated
dwidend spht of one third interm dividend and two thirds
final dividend, this implies a full year dividend equivalent
of 165 pence per ordinary share

Current trading and outiook

In the period since the year end, current trading has been
in ine with the market’s expectations and 1s trending well
We remain optimistic about the ‘opportunity set' presented
to us and are seeing unusually good global acquisition
opportunities, as the market consolidates around clients’
geographic needs, and substantial organic opportunities,
as our service portfolio improves and we follow key clients
tnto new geographies

Our markets and specific client contracts continue to show
growth and present regular opportunities to win sigruficant
new business The Board continues to target double digit
revenue growth on steadily improving operating profit margins
and, given good retum on capital employed, expects to
continue its R&D and capital expenditure programme

Matthew Paacock
Executive Chairman
25 September 2012

Regenersis Plc | Report and Accounts 2012
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& Business overview

Business and Financial Review

The financial performance of the business showed
significant forward momentum with headline
operating profit growing 24% to £7.8 million.

Resulis

The financia! performance of the business showed
significant forward momentum with revenue of £139 9 milion
{2011 £123 8 mllion, growth 13%), headline operating profit
of £7 8 million (2011 £6 3 million, growth 24%), a headline
operating profit margin of 5 5% (2011 51%), and significant
mprovement in operating cash flow of £4 8 million

{2011 £2 4 nullion), leading to a reduction in net debt at

June 2012 to £2 9 mulion (2011 £3 8 mifien) Group operating
profit ncreased to 270% £2 1 milion {2011 £0 6 million})

Key financials

2012 2011
£m £m
Revenue 1399 1238
Headline operating profit 78 63
Operating profit 21 06
Headline cperating margin % 55% 51%
Operating margen % 15% 05%

The most significant factor was the growth in revenue and
profits n Advanced Solutions and Western Europe, along
with cost reductions in Western Europe and corporate costs

Reporting segments

Headline

aparating

Segment Ravenus profit
2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £fm £m £m

Emerging Markets 413 432 46 51
Westem Europe 798 831 21 15
Advanced Solutions 188 175 29 24
Tatal divisionat 1399 1238 96 80
Carporate costs - - 18 (27
Group 1399 123 8 78 83

Report and Accounts 2012 | Regenersis Plc

Emerging Markets

Emerging Markets includes Poland, Romania, Russia

{a 50% joint venture), South Africa and Turkey Following
the acquisition of HDM in August 2012, this segment also
includes Mexico and Argentina

Overall revenue dechned marginally to £41 million
Headline operating profit also reduced to £4 6 million,
due to a decline In sales of new mobile devices

by some of our large mobile clients and start up
investment incurred in the new South African operation
Financial and operational highlights included

+ Poland and Romanta remain focused on providing a
quick in-country solution, as well as a low cost solution
for off-shoring work from Westermn European markets
We won new business with Qrange In the year

+ South Afnica is proving to be an excellent growth market
This Regenersis site has now operated for over 12
months We have now moved this site in run-rate terms
to a profit position after the imtial start up investrnent
We won new work in our Media and Entertainment
product ine with Acer, which will be implemented in the
current financtal year There exists a good and growing
pipeline of new opportunittes in this country

¢ Turkey 1s another market with good potential This site
has now operated for over 12 menths and continues
to perform well providing mobile services We are
also seeking new opportunities in Turkey in a number
of product ines

« Russia continues to be served by our joint venture
operation and dunng the period we won new work for our
B2B and financial products and a new contract with HTC
The pipeline of new opportunities 1s growing, serviced by
the new global sales force

* New markets in Mexico and Argentina have been entered
through the acquisttion of HDOM These will contnbute to
the current year's results

Overall In the year, the Group consolidated its position and
made considerable progress in its strategy to enter new
emerging markets and develop existing ones, against a
backdrop of reduced volumes (but not market shares)
with certain large clients
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29

O Emerging Markets
@ Western Europe

© Advanced Solutions

Revenue Headline operating profit

by segment {Em) by segment (Em)

Western Europe

Western Europe comprises the businesses in the UK,
(excluding Advanced Solutiens) at Glasgow, Huntingdon and
Normanton, in Germany, Schloss Holte and Sommerda and
in Sweden (a 50% Joint venture) Foliowing the acquisition of
HDM in August 2012, this will also include Spain

Overall revenue increased 26% to £80 milhion Headline
operating profit grew by 40% to £2 1 million, this was mamly
due to growth from new contract wins and cost reductions in
the UK operations following the completion of restructunng
activittes Financial and operational highlights included

* Germany delivered good growth through new contract
wins with a number of large customers, as well as growth
n revenues from existing customers We continue to bulld
a substantial business supporting ‘Chip and Pin’ providers
in logistics, refurbishment, repair and programming,
where there are particularly demanding accreditation and
service requrements In addition, progress supporting
ATM machines and more advanced IT services, such as
for the healthcare industry, continues We will continue to
roll out these services in other countries

* The Sweden joint venture acquired n January 2012
required substantial restructuring, which commenced in
June 2012 as planned at the time of acquisition

¢ In the UK, we grew profitability through focused
cost management inihiatives This year zlso saw the
completion of a substantial restructuring of the UK
busmness, reflecting the more efficient processes we now
follow as a Group, the consolidation of our activities in
key areas and markets, and the wind-down of the major
contract with Hutchison 3G announced last year

There was significant progress during the year in
developing the strategy of focus on niche product areas,
where Regenersis has or can build a high market share with
specific clients, brands and device types This Is reflected
in the strong performance in Germany and in secunng

our first contracts in other geographies

Regenersis Plc | Reportand Accounts 2012
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8 Business overview

Business and Financial Review continued

Advanced Solutions

The Advanced Solutions segment has historically been
centred on our business serving set top box and televisions,
based in Glenrothes in Scotland During the year we have
expanded our services i this division to include a number of
new product offerings and locations as well as growing the
business in Glenrothes

Overall revenue Increased 7% to £18 8 million
Headline operating profit grew by 21% to £2 8 million
Financial and cperational mghlights inctuded

Matrix of services and geographies

Advanced Solutions = in the UK includes in-field testing,
where we are partnering with Virgin Media to diagnose
sat-top box faults in the home, reducing unnecessary
returns costs The equipment s currently being deployed
n the field

Advanced Solutions - Media & Entertainment, Other
countries we have undertaken a successful trial of our
in-field testing equipment in the US and have recently
secured a roll-out agreement with a major US cable TV
company To support this market, we opened a new
sales office in USA (Tampa, Flonda) The launch of this
business 1s going well, although there 1s Iittle financial
impact in the year reported

c |2 3 g 2lz o £ |3 5 e
(2|28 (2|8 |21 || |2 |5
El13d|=z=|& e (*®|5 |2 |58 |5
Z m =2 8 [
Repair o] O|o[ofe e elo e
Mobile
Vendor Management Qutsourcing/BPO O Statting // ®
STB Repair paint //
Media & P O o
Entertainment TVs, Sat Nav, Laptops o o / Brogress In last
12-18 months
Cash and Payment
B28 niche *jo1 A |® nd
products Medical and industnal el o / ® WHITE SPACE
Recommerce e |
Advanced Digital Care
Solutions g et e
IFT/Licensing Y ®
O indicates where an offering I1s already in place

@ indicates where an offenng has recently been launched

Report and Accounts 2012 | Regenersis Pic




Business overview ¢

* Recommerce -this was launched in the UK with plans
to enter two or three new terntores 1n 2013 We manage
the operations programme to handle chient product
return and refurbishment as well as a service for OEMs
Management of refurbished products 1s a growth focus
for our clients We have invested heawvily in this area to
create a bespoke and scalable technology proposition
that 1s in demand and reflects a general shift in the
industry We plan to grow our operations with existing
customers and roli out the concept in other terntones

+  Digital Care — this was faunched in Sweden and Poland
duning the latter part of the year We provide a range
of extended warranty and insurance services to end
customers through intermedranes covenng mebile,
media and other portable consumer electronic
equipment The launch of these businesses 1s going well
and there 1s little financial impact in the year reported

+ Business Process Outsourcing - across a number of
locations we prowide our vendor management service,
which runs the repair function for our customers retail
network on their behalf This helps our customers reduce
the cost of their aftermarket service provision

Overall, the year has shown growth in our existing Advanced
Solutions propositions in terms of chient wins and new
geographies and development of new propositions to broaden
and accelerate growth in the current year

Client development

We continue to develop long term partnerships with our key
customers and improve our internal commercial disciplines
in contract life cycle management

We have continued to grow and develop our global sales
team responsible for providing an integrated approach to
large multi-national clients and prospects, which often have
activities cutting across the traditional device distinctions
{mobile phones, notebook computers, televisions, etc)

We have had considerable success rolling existing
relatonships into other termtories including, with HTC from the
UK into South Afnca and Russia, Wincor from Germany into
Russia, Intermec frorm Germany into Glenrothes and Russia

In the year to June 2012 the fargest client accounted for
14% of the Group's revenue and the top 10 clients represent
67% of Group revenue Within most of the largest clients
the business 1s bullt up from multiple contracts for different
geographtes and/or types of work with different durations

Acquisition of Anovo Nordic

In January 2012 we purchased a 50% share in Anove Nordic
for a consideration of €0 25 million, which was renamed
Regenersis Nordic AB The other 50%, which the Group
has an option to acqurre in the future, 1s owned by the local
management This business has a good market share in
mobile repair n Sweden The business required substantial
restructuring, which commenced in June 2012

Regenersis Plc | Report and Accounts 2012
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10 Business overview

Business and Financial Review connued

A significant improvement in operating cash flow
to £4.9 million (2011: £2.4 million), leading to a
reduction in net debt at June 2012 to £2.9 million

(2011: £3.8 million).

Acquisition of HDM

0On 25 July 2012 we agreed to acquire the trade and assets
of the HDM Group of Companies {(“HDM™ for an initial
consideration of €6 5 million on a cash- and debt-free basis
Completion took place on 31 August 2012

The key highlights of the acquisttion were

* HDM provides aftermarket services including, raverse
logistics and reparr to network operators and mobile
telephone manufacturers in Spain, Mexico and Argentina

+ Key customers include Telefomca, Samsung and Nokia

+ HDM employs more than 600 staff across its
three faciities

Exceptional restructuning and deat costs

This year bnngs to an end the substantial restructunng of the

UK business This restructuring recognises the more effictent
processes we now follow as a Group and the consolidation of
our actmities tn key areas and markets This restructuring has
led to an exceptional provision for onerous teases and people
costs at the 2012 year-end of £4 4 million

There were also one off deal costs from an unsuccessful
acquisition of £0 5 million

Repornt and Accounts 2012 | Regenersis Plc

Amortisation of intangible assets

Other costs excluded from headline operating profit were the
ongoing amortisation of acquired intangible assets amounting
to £0 2 milion (2011 £0 5 million)

Share-based payments

Other costs excluded from headline operating profit
were share-based payments amounting to £0 3 million
(2011 £01 milhon) This has increased principally due
to the Incentive Share Scheme established in late 2011

Net financing charges

During the year the Group increased its loan facility from

£15 million to £23 25 million with HSBC The facility runs untif
October 2015 The one-off costs of arranging this facility
totalled £0 2 milion and are amortised cover the expected
loan facility period Aside from this, net financing charges
were £0 4 millon (2011 £0 3 miliion)
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Taxation

The total tax charge was £0 3 million (2013 £1 0 mithon)
The Group has a permanent benefit from beng in terrntones
where the local taxation rates are lower than the UK rate,
for example Poland (19%) and Romania (16%) The blended
corporation tax rate for the Group 1s 15%

Earnings per share

Adjusted earmings per share increased to 13 85 pence
(2011 12 26 pence) The basic earmings per share 15

3 33 pence (2011 loss of 1 85 pence)

Exchange rates

Dunng the year, although currencies in the overseas
economies where we have a presence (notably Germany,
Poland and Romania) have weakened relative to Steriing,
this did not matenally aiter the Group’s reperted profit result

The cumulative effect of exchange rate movements on
the Group's net assets I1s reflected in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Cash flow

2012 2019
£m £m

Operating cash flow before movement
n working capital 57 az

Movement in working capital n 22)
Movement in provisions 18 23
Net interest payments {01) ©03)
Tax paid {08) (0 6)
Qperating cash flow 49 24
Net capital expenditure 33) {22)
Exchange gains on translation (07) 01
Net reduction in net debt 09) 03
Net debt (29) (38

Cash flow from operating activities was improved with a net
inflow of £4 9 millkion (2011 £2 4 mullion)

Our conversion of profits into cash has improved, with
continued focus on working capital management Working
capital has increased by £17 milien, which 15 1n lne with
revenue growth Debtor days are broadly in line with the
prior year at 42 days (2011 41 days)

Tax paid was £0 8 milhon, as the Group again benefited
from losses brought forward and research and development
expenditure tax credits

Interest paid was £01 milhion (2011 £0 3 million) and s lower
than the pnor year due to improved cash management

Capital expenditure and investment in R&D was increased
to £3 3 mullion (2011 £2 2 million) overall Expenditure on
tangible assets, pnmarily comprising new buildings and
equipment for our new South Afrnican and Polish operations,
was £2 2 million (2011 £1 2 million) Following further
investment in automation and in-field testing technology,
expenditure on intangible assets was broadly unchanged

at £11 million {2011 £1 0 million)

Financial position

The Group has strong financial metnecs with interest cover
of 22 times (2011 26 times) and a net debt to EBITDA ratio
of 03 (2011 05)

Financing
At 30 June 2012 net debt was £2 9 million, a signficant
improvement on the prior year {2011 £3 8 million)

Year end net debt compnsed gross borrowings of £6 0 million,
all i Sterling (2011 £7 0 million), cash and cash equivalents
of £2 7 milkon (2011 £2 9 mitlon) and the deferred loan
factlity arrangement costs of £0 4 million (2011 £0 3 million)

The Group increased its banking facihities to £23 25 milhon
duning the year and has ample headroom to fund investment
and M&A activity m 2012/13 and beyond

All banking covenants have been passed and show
significant headroom for the foreseeable future

Regenersis Plc | Report and Accounts 2012
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12 Business overview

BUSineSS Ond Fil‘ldl‘lCiGl ReVieW continued

Key performance indicators

The Group has a range of performance indicators, both
financial and non-financial, to monttor and manage the
business These are set at the individual customer level and
for business units as well as for the Group as a whole The
Group’s key performance indicators {(“KPIs") are headline
operating profit, headline operating margin and net debt,

These measures are used continually to manage the business,

Improve performance and compare results aganst targets

Risks and uncertainhes

Throughout its international operations, Regenersis faces
various risks, both internal and external, which could have
a matenal impact on the Group’s long-term performance
Regenersis manages the risks inherent in 1ts operations
In order to mitigate exposure to all forms of nsk, where
practical The Board has identified several specific nsks
and uncertainties that potentially impact the ongoing
business including

* Commaercial contract nsks — Given the potential for
onerous terms In customer contracts 1t 1s essential
that Regenersis continues to contract for business
at acceptable rates and with approprate commercial
balance This also includes consideration of the cash
flow impact of each customer contract The Group
has a contract approval scale in which, the key
customer contracts will be approved by the Group
Board and others approved by different levels of
senior management as appropriate

* Systems nsks - As data management is an essential
platform of our service offening, the flexibility and
reliability of the systems is ¢ritical to the ongoing

development of the Group The integnty of our systems is
mamntained through multiple site locations backup testing

and a disaster recovery plan
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Market and economic nsks - The Group's activities
support a broad range of customer onentated and
technology nch products There is a strong correlation
between the volume of consumer sales and the number
of service events arising as a result of those sales

The Group has been developing a diversified service
capability and expanding capacity in low cost service
locations to ensure a balanced portfolio of customers,
services and locations

Financing nsks - In the continuing difficult financial
markets the Group has mantained a prudent approach
to the management of cash flow The Group has good
access to faciliies providing finance until October 2015

Customer concentration nsks - A number of customers
are significant in the context of the Group as a whole
Decreasing customer concentration remarns an 1ssue the
Board 1s conscious of and seeks to reduce further through
the development of new customers and the creation of
more dependent relationships with its existing customers

Operational nsks — Cperational efficiency 1s vital to
the profitability of the Group and to customer service
The Group 1s currently giving this area great focus
and has strengthened the operational management
where needed

Complance nsks - Some of the Group's business relies
on the compliance with and enforcement of legislation
consistent with the WEEE Directive The Group maintains
Govemnment approved licenses to manage the collection,
treatment and export of electncal waste In addition
Regenersis handles equipment holding personal data
and s mindful of the mphcations of the Data Protection
Act The Group maintains internal processes to ensure
appropnate guidelines are followed
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Foreign exchange rate volahlity - The widening
geographic spread of the Group means that financial
results can, increasingly, be affected by movements in
foreign exchange rates The nsk presented by currency
fluctuations may affect busmness planning and product
procurement costs The Group monttors foreign
exchange exposure closely, performs regular reporting
to the Board and when an exposure I1s not covered
through a natural hedge, will consider entering into a
hedge arrangement

Employee engagement - Staff engagement is essential to
the successful delwvery of service to customers and longer
term the overall business strateqy Considerable effort has
been devoted to communicating the business strateqy so
employees are clear on our business objectives and their
role in the strategy The employee appraisals process
and the setting of personal objectives operate within

the framework of our corporate objectives This 1s then
reinforced by the employee incentivisation process

Cautionary statement

This review has been prepared solely to provide additional
information to shareholders to assess the Group's strategy
and the potential of that strategy to succeed and should not
be relied upon by any other party or for any other purpose

It contains certain forward-looking statements with respect
to the financial condition, results, operations and businesses
of Regenersis plc

These statements and forecasts involve nisk and uncertainty
because they relate to events and depend upon the
circumstances that may occur in the future

There are a number of factors that could cause actual results
or developments to differ matenally from those expressed or
imphed by these forward-looking statements and forecasts

Nothing in this review should be construed as a profit forecast

Matthew Peacock
Executive Chairman

Jog Dhody
Chief Financial Officer
25 September 2012
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14 Business overview

Directors and Advisers

1 Matthew Peacock
Executive Chairman

2 Jog Dhody
Chief Financial Officer

5 Kovin Bradshaw
Non-executive Director

4 Tom Russell
Non-executive Director

3 Michael Peacock
Senior Independent
Non-executive Director

Registered office Auditors Bankers Lawyers
4th Floor KPMG Audrt Plc HSBC Pinsent Masons
32 Wigmore Street One Snowhitl 4th Floor, 120 Edmund Street 3 Cotmore Circus
London W1U 2RP Snow Hill Queensway Birmingham B3 2Q2Z Birmingham B4 6BH
T +44 (0)203 657 7000 Birmingham B4 6GH Registrars Company Secretary
F +44 (0)203 657 7019 Nominated adviser Computershare tnvestor Pnsm Cosec Limited
and joint broker Services plc 10 Margaret Street
g;’:’;:z’g’ number Arden Partners PO Box 82 London W1W 8RL
125 Old Broad Street The Pavilions
London EC2N 1AR Bridgewater Road
Joint broker Bristol BS99 7NH
Panmure Gordon (UK) Ltd
155 Moorgate
London EC2M 6XB
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1 Matthew Peacock

Executive Chairman

Matthew Peacock is the founder
partner of Hanover Investors
Management LLP whichs

a significant shareholder of
Regenersts Hanover Investors s

a specialist tumaround investment
firm based in London Matthew

has led investments for over 22
years in, amongst other sectors,
manufactunng, outsourced business
services, chemicals, financial
services, textiles, media, technology
and logistics Pror to this, he ran the
international M&A team in London
at Barclays de Zoete Wedd, having
started his career at Credit Suisse
First Boston in New York Matthew 1s
also Chairman of Fairpoint Group plc,
having served on a number of public
company boards over the

last decade

Tom Russell
Non-executive Director

Tom Russell 1s a partner at Hanover
Investors Management LLP Prior to
this he spent nine years at Mercer
Olver Wyman, where he specialised
in the Communications, Information
and Entertainment sector, advising
on strategy and operations

Jog Dhody
Chief Financial Officer

Jog Dhody has significant financial
management expenence, particularly
within ambitious, growth-onented
businesses Jog was most recently
Chief Financial Officer of the
Esporta Group, a position he held
for four years During that time,

Jog played a key role in the
successful restructuring and
turmaround of the business, which
had been the subject of a private
equity-backed refinancing, and

the ultimate sale of the operating
business to Virgin Active in April
2011 and the sale of the property
company to 8ntish Land m July
2011 Pror to this, Jog was Financial
Controlter of Phones4u Group

Kevin Bradshaw
Non-executive Director

Kevin Bradshaw most recently
served as Managing Director

of Avis UK and was additionally
responsible for technology across
Awvis Europe Plc As a part of the Avis
Executive Board, Kevin oversaw

a significant turnaround of the UK
operating business and undertoock
a transformation of the European
technology organisation prior to
the sale of Awis Europe in October
2011 Previously, Kevin served as
Managing Director of the Enterpnse
Informatton Division at Reuters Pl
and grew a number of businesses
supplying financial data to the
World's leading institutional financial
services companies Kewin started
his career at the Kalchas Group, a
firm of strategy consultants founded
as a spin off from McKinsey and
Bain & Company
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3 Michael Peacock

Senior Independent
Non-executive Director

Michael Peacock was most recently
the Finance Director at Victrex plc
Victrex 1s a global manufacturer

of innovative, high performance
thermoplastic polymers, working
with customers and end users to
deliver technology dnven solutions
to the challenges and opportunites
they face Michae!l was formerly with
Barclays de Zoete Wedd’s corporate
finance department before moving
inte Industry as a Finance Director
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16 Corporate govermance

Directors’ Report

The Birectors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

Principal activities

Regenersis I1s a leading, strategic outsource partner to the
world's premier consumer technology brands We specialise
n the field of after-sales, enabling our chients to define and
deliver cost effective service propositions that reinforce their
brands and build stronger relationships with therr customers

We achieve this by creating solutions that leverage our
market knowledge, techmical expertise and customer insight
Clients benefit from accelerated delvery of solutions by
takung advantage of our innovative products and services

Our dedication to improve the end-to-end customer
experience and, at the same time, to reduce the total cost of
after-sales make us unique N our market place As aresult,
our chents choose Regenersis to manage (1) the Iifecycle of
their products from the preparation and introduction of new
products to market, (1) call centres providing technical and
customer support, {1} warranty management and insurance
fulfilment, (iv) fully integrated repair avaidance, (v) returns
management and technical repatr, and {vi} the refurbishment
and recommerce of devices

Business review and future developments
The Company s required by the Companies Act 2006 to
include a business review in this report The information that
fulfils the reguirements of the business review can be found in
the Chairman’s Statement on page 4, and the Business and
Financial Review on pages 6 to 13 which i1s incorporated in
this report by reference These reports also include details
of expected future developments in the business of the
Group, principal nsks and uncertainties and details of key
performance indicators deployed by management

The Business and Financtal Review has been prepared to
provide the Company's shareholders with a far review of

its business and a description of the prnincipal nsks and
uncertainties facing it It should not be relied upon by anyone,
including the Company's shareholders, for any other purpose

Results and dividends

The audited accounts for the Group for the year

ended 30 June 2012 are set out on pages 28 to 64

The Group profit for the year after taxation was £1 4mullion
(2011 £0 8 milion loss) The Board recommends the
payment of a final dividend of 11pence per ordinary share
to be paid on 5 December 2012 to shareholders on the
register on 9 November 2012

Directors

Details of changes to the Board dunng the year and of the
Drrectors offenng themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 18 to 21

Details of Directors’ service agreements are set out in the
Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 22 to 24

The interesis of the Directors in the shares of the Company
are set out on page 24
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Full rographical details of the Company’s Directors are
given on pages 14 and 15

Directors’ liability insurance and indemnities
The Company maintains lability insurance for the Directors
and officers of all Group companies The policy does not
provide cover In the event that a Duector or officer 1S proved
to have acted fraudulently or dishonestly

Indemnities are in force under which the Company has
agreed to indemnify the Directors to the extent permitted
by applicable law and the Company's articles of association
in respect of all losses ansing out of, or in connection with,
the execution of their powers, duties and responsibilities as
Directors of the Company or any of its subsidianes

Supplier payment policy

The Group agrees payment terms with its suppliers when it
enters into binding purchase contracts The Group seeks to
abide by the payment terms agreed whenever it s satisfied
that the supplier has provided the goods or services

in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions

The Group seeks to treat all supphers fairly, but it does not
have a Group-wide standard or code of practice that deals
specifically with payment to supplers Trade payables at
30 June 2012 represented on average 31 days credit
based on actual invoices received (2011 44 days credit)

Share capital

The 1ssued share capital of the Company at 30 June 2012
was £896,405, compnsed of 44,820,252 ordinary shares
of two pence each of whrch 2,150,000 are designated as
treasury shares

The Directors will be seeking authonity at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting to renew their authonty to allot shares
{Resolution 8 and 9) and aiso a further authonty enabling

the Company to purchase its own shares (Resolution 10)

Full details of these resolutions, together with explanatory
notes, are contaned in the Notice of Annual General Meeting
on pages 65 to 70

Substantial shareholdings
As at 21 September 2012, the following shareholders own
more than 3% of the issued share capital of the Company
% ofissued  Number of
shares

share capital
Hanover Investors Management LLP 2279 10,213,351
Torch Camtal (BV1) Limited 1269 5,687,500
Impax Asset Management Limited 994 4,455,514
Gordon Sydney Shields 892 3,997966
Fidelity Investments 497  2,225413
Regenersis EBT 480 2,150,000
Aviva Investors 443 1,986,328
Ignus Investment Services Linited 409 1,833,200
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Fixed assels

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no matenal difference
between the book value and the current open market value
of the Group’s interests in land and bulldings

Charitable and political donations

The Group made no direct chantable donations dunng
the year However, certan clients direct the Group to
pay ther entitternent under commercial arrangements to
various charities

Going concern

As highlighted in note 26 o the financial statements, the Group
meets its day to day working capital requirements through a
bank facility which 1s due for renewal on 31 October 2015

Further informaticn on the Group's business activities,
together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position 1s set cut in the Business and
Financial Review on pages 6 to 13 Further information on the
financial position of the Group, its cash flows, hquidity position
and borrowing facilities are descnbed in the Business and
Financial Review on 10 and 11 In addition, note 26 to the
financial statements details the Group's objectives, policies
and processes for managing its capital and its exposures to
credit nsk and iquidity nsk

The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking account of
possible changes in tracing performance, show that the Group
should be able to operate within the leve! of its current faciity

After making enquiries, the Board has a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the annual report

and accounts

Subsequent events

On 31 August 2012, the Group completed its acquisttion of all
of the 1ssued share capital of Plataforma HDM Técnologica
S A and Plataforma HOM Tecnolegica S A de CV and

the trade and assets of HDM Plataforma LogistcaS L,
HDM Soluciones Integrales de Reparacion S L and HDM
Moviltech Serwicio Técmico S L together compnsing the
entire operations of the HDM Group of Compantes (“HDM")
for an initial consideration of €6 Smullion on a cash- and
debt-free basis

The initial consideration includes €5 85million funded through
the Group’s existing banking facilities, and the remaining
€0 65 million through the 1ssuance of 587,571 ordinary shares

In addition to this €6 Smillion imtial consideration, a capped
eam-out will be payable on 30 September 2015, based on
the EBIT achieved in the year to June 2015

HDM 1s a leading provider of aftermarket services, including
reverse logistics and reparr, to network operators and mobile
telephone manufacturers in Spamn, Mexice and Argentina
HDM'’s key customers include Telefonica, Samsung and Nokia

The addition of tigh-gquality business in Spain, where HDM
has a 20% market share in mobile reparr, significantly

enhances Regenersis’ European customer proposition
The acquisition also provides a strong exposure to new
Emerging Markets and a platform for further future
expansion into Latin America

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held

on Wednesday 21 November 2012 at the offices of Arden
Partners, 125 Old Broad Street, London, EC2N 1AR The
Notice setting out detalls of the business to be considered at
the mesting 1s included on pages 65 to 70

Auditor

KPMG Audit Plc have expressed thewr willingness to
continue in office as auditors and a resolution proposing
therr re-appotntment will be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting

Disclosure of information to the auditor
As required by Section 418 of the Companies Act 20086,
each Director serving at the date of approval of the financial
statements confirms that

* to the best of therr knowledge and belief, there i1s no
informatton relevant to the preparation of their report of
which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

+ each Director has taken all the steps a Director might
reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware
of relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that information

Words and phrases used in this confirmation should
be interpreted in accordance with Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Employees
The Group keeps its employees informed of matters
affecting them as employees through regular team briefings
throughout the year Applications for employment by
disabled persons are given full and fair consideration for all
vacancies in accordance with therr particular aptitudes and
abiities In the event of employees becoming disabled, every
effort 1s made to retan them in order that their employment
with the Group may continue It is the policy of the Group that
training, career development and promotiga opportunities
should be available to all employees

The average [

eref employees wyhin the Group 1s shown
In note 9 14 5

entg’on page 41
By ordér of the Board

Jog Dhody
Chief Financial Officer

RegenersisPlc | Report and Accounts 2012
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18 Corporate governance

Corporate Governance

Principles of good governance

As a Company quoted on AIM, a market operated by the
London Stock Exchange, the Company 1s not required
to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code
{‘the Code') However, the Group has comphed with the
provisions of the Code with the following exceptions

¢ Matthew Peacock, as Executive Chairman has
responsibilities for both the organisation of the Board
and running of the Group’s business Whilst this does
not meet the critera set out In provision A 2 of the
Code, the abjectivity of the Board and its independence
from management 1s strengthened by the designation
of a senior Independent Non-executive Director,
Michael Peacock (no relation), to convene or charr
sessions of the Non-executive Directors If required

« Tom Russell was until 10 September 2012 a member of
the Audit and Remuneration Committees and remains
a member of the Nominations Committee By virtue of
his position with Hanover Investors Management LLP,
Mr Russell therefore does not meet the independence
cnteria set out in provision B 11 of the Code

* Following the appointment of Kevin Bradshaw as an
independent Non-executive Director on 31 January 2012,
the Audit and Remuneration Committees now compnse
a minimum of two Independent Non-executive Directors
as required by provisions C 31 and D 2 1 of the Code
respectively However, the Nominations Commuttee does
not comprise a majonty of independent Non-executive
Directors as required by provision B 2 1 of the Code

The Board

Structure and composition

As at 30 June 2012, the Board comprised two Executive
and three Non-executive Directors

Audlt Remunerstion Nomination
Appointed Committes Committes Committes

Matthew Peacock
Executive Chairman B8 Feb 2011 - - Chairman

Jog Dhod
Chlgnfﬂngncylnlomcur 21 Mar 2012 - - -

Michael Peacock

Senior Indepandent
Nom-exscttvo Diractor 8 Feb 2011 Charman ~ Chairman  Member

Tom Russell
Non-exscutive Diractor 8 Mar 2011 Member Member Member

Kewvin Bradshaw
Nm\-’-lzumunnmm 31Jan 2012 Member Member Member

Biographies of all the Directors at the date of this report,
including those offering themselves for re-election at this
year's Annual General Meeting on Wednesday 21 November
2012, are set out on pages 14 and 15
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The Chairman s responsible for eadership of the

Board, ensurning its effectiveness and setting its agenda
The Chairman facilitates the effective contribution and
performance of all Board members whilst identifying any
development needs of the Board He also ensures that there
1s sufficient and effective communication with shareholders
to understand therr 1ssues and concerns

Michael Peacock 1s the Senior Independent Non-executive
Director to whom concems may be conveyed by shareholders
If they are unable to resolve them through existing
mechamsms for investor commurnications or where such
channels are (napproprate

The Company Secretary I1s responsible for assisting the
Chairman in all matters relating to corporate governance

Details of the terms of appointment of both the Executive
and Non-executive Directors are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report, which refers to executive service
contracts and non-executive terms of appointment, coples
of which are available for inspection at the Company's
registered office and which will be avarlable for inspection
at the forthcoming AGM

Board process

The Directors ensure the effectiveness of the Board through
regular meetings and by having open lines of communication
between Board members

During the year, the Board made visits to the Group's
operating sites, and believes that the benefit of its collective
experience 1s a valuable asset to the business Cn joining
the Board, new Directors are given background information
describing the Group and its activities and site visits to the
major business units Meetings with principal shareholders
and advisers are arranged as appropriate

Details of attendance at scheduled Board and Board
Committee meetings during the penod are as follows

Audlt Remuneration Nominations

Board Committes Committes Committes

No. d  No. Ho. No.
Matthew Peacock 13 13 - 2 - 2 1 1
Michael Peacock 13 13 3 3 7 1 1
Tom Russell 13 12 3 3 7 1 1
Kewvin Bradshaw
{appointed 31 Jan2mz) © 6 2 2 3 3 - -
Andrew Lee
{resigned 31 Jen 2012) 7 5 1 1 4 1 - -
Jog Dh N
[:pgokm%dzz marzmnzy 44 -1 - - -
Jeremy Wilson 10 10 _ o - 1 -

{resigned 21 Mar 2012)

*Attended by imatation

Non-attendance at meetings was due to prior business or
personal commitments Directors unable to attend Board
or Committee meetings reviewed the relevant papers and
provided comments to the Chairman or Committee Chairman
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The Board sets the strategic objectves of the Group, agrees
on performance critena and delegates to management the
detalled planning and implementation of those objectives
and policies in accordance with appropriate nsk parameters
The Board monitors compliance with policies and
achievements against objectives by holding management
accountable for its actvities through regular reporting and
budget updates

The Board has agreed a schedule of matters reserved
specifically for its decision which include

* QOverall strategy and objectives,

* Approving intenm and financial statements,

* Approving annual budget and medium term projections,
* Reviewing operational and financial performance,

* Acquisittons and disposals,

* Approval of major customer contracts,

* Major divestments and capital expenditure,

* Rewviewing the Group's systems and capital expenditure,

* Reviewing the environmental and health and safety
performance of the Group,

* Approving appointments to the Board including the
Company Secretary,

*  Approving policies proposed by the Remuneration
Committee relating to Directors’ remuneration and the
severance of Directors’ contracts, and

* Ensunng that a satisfactory dialogue takes place
with shareholders

The Board i1s supplied in a tmely manner with the
appropriate information to enable it to discharge its duties,
including providing constructive challenge to, and scrutiny
of, management Further information 1s obtained by the
Board from the Executive Directors and other relevant senior
executives as the Board, particularly its Non-executive
members, considers appropnate

Procedures are in place for Directors to take independent
professional advice, when necessary, at the Company's
expense No such advice was sought dunng the year
under review

The Board 1s supported by the Company Secretary

who, under the direction of the Chairman, ensures good
communication and information flows within the Board,
including between Executive and Non-executive Directors
and between the Board and its Commuttees

If Directors have concems that cannot be resolved regarding
the runming of the Group or a proposed action, they are
encouraged to make their views known and these are
recorded in the Board minutes

Directors’ conflicts of interest

Under the Comparnies Act 2006, a Director must avoid a
situation where he has, or can have, a direct or indirect
interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict with the
Group's Interests The requirement ts considered very
broad and could apply, for example, if a Director becormnes
a Director of another Company or a trustee of another
organisation The Act allows Directors of public companies
to authonise conflicts and potential conflicts, where
appropnate, provided that the articles of association contain
a provision to this effect The Company’s articles authorse
the Directors to approve such situational conflicts

There are safeguards which will apply when Directors
decide whether to authonise a conflict or potential conflict
First, only Directors who have no interest in the matter being
considered will be able to take the relevant decision, and
second, in taking the decision, the Directors mustactin a
way which they consider, in good faith, will be most likely to
promote the Group's success The Directors will be able to
impose limits or conditions when giving authonsation If they
think this 1 appropnate

Directors are required to notify the Company Secretary

of any additional conflict situation or if there 1s a matenal
change in a conflict situation previously notified, giving
sufficient details of the situation to allow the Board to make
an inforrmed decision when considenng authonsation

Re-appointment of Directors

The articles of association provide that any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director shall hold office only until the AGM immediately
following appointment and shall then be eligible for election
but shall not be taken into account in determining the
Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by
rotation at that meeting (Article 84 2)

Andy Lee resigned from his Non-executive position on
the Board on 31 January 2012 In his place, the Board
appointed Kevin Bradshaw to fill the resutting vacancy
Jog Dhody joined the Board as Chief Financial Officer on
21 March 2012 following the resignation of Jeremy Wilson
Both Mr Bradshaw and Mr Dhody will offer themselves for
election at the forthcoming AGM

Board performance and evaluation

The Board instituted a format evaluation process for the
Board, its Committees and indwidual Directors in respect
of the year ended 30 June 2012 The evaluation process
concluded that the Board as a whole and its Comnuttees
had functioned effectively dunng the year and that each
Director continued to make a valuable contribution

Regenersis Plc | Report and Accounts 2012
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20 Corporate governance

Corporate Governance comnueo

Board Commitiees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee 1s chared by Michael Peacock

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met three
times and details of attendance are given in the table above
The Executive Directors are invited to attend meetings as
necessary The Chairman and/or the Committee meets with
the external auditors without any Executive Directors present
whenever this 1s considered appropnate

The Committee’s responsibilittes nclude

*«  Menitoring the integnty of the financial statements of
the Group and any formal announcements relating to
the Group's financial performance, reviewing significant
financial reporting jJudgements contained in them,

* Considenng the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditors, approving the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors and agreeing
the scope of the audt engagement,

» Keeping under review the effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of internal financial control and reporting to the
Board regarding such systems on an annual basis, and

* Reviewing the arrangements by which Group
employees may, in confidence, raise concens about
possible impropneties in matters of financial reporting
{or other matters)

Remuneration Committes

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Michae! Peacock
and met seven times during the year Matthew Peacock 1s
invited to attend meetings as necessary

Under its terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee 1s
responsible for

* Ensurning that the Company's Executive Directors and
certain other agreed senior executives are fairly rewarded
for their ndividual contributions to the Group's overall
performance,

s Demonstrating to shareholders and cther interested
parties that the remuneration (including all benefits and
terms of employment} of the Executive Directors 1s set by
a committee of Board members who have no financial
interest, other than as shareholders, In the outcome
of their decisions and who will have due regard to the
interests of the shareholders and to the financial and
commercial heaith of the Group, and

+ Assessing how the Group should comply with
established best practice in Directors’ remuneration,

Full details of the role, policies and activities of the
Remuneration Committee are set out in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 22 to 24
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Nominahons Committee

The Nominations Committee is chared by Matthew
Peacock The Committee meets as and when required and
met once dunng the year to consider appointments

Under its terms of reference, the Nomination Committee 1s
responsible for

Selecting the most suitable candidate or candidatas for
appointrment to the Board, and

+ Overseeing succession planning for the Board

Internal conirols

The Board 1s responstble for mantaining a sound system of
intemal control to safeguard shareholders’ investments and
the Group's assets Such a system i1s designed to manage
rather than eliminate the nsk of fallure to achieve business
objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against matenal mis-statement or loss

Regenersis 1s committed to conducting its business
responsibly and in accordance with afl applicable laws and
regulations Employees are encouraged to raise concerns
about fraud, bnbery and other matters in line with the
Company pelicies All such concerns are referred to, and
investigated by, the Audit Commuttee, which recommends
approprate remedial action

The Grroup’s financial reporting processes are detalled and
regularly reviewed The detaled reporting Is reviewed, at
least each maonth end, by the members of Group Finance,
highlighting areas of cancern and checking/confirming that
the reasons for vanations are vahd Quarterly reviews of
each business are performed, covenng both hustonc and
forthcoming financial and business performance as well
anticipating key future events

Audit independence

The Audit Committee and the Board place great emphasis
on the objectwity of the external auditor in their reporting

to shareholders The audit partner and director are present
at Audit Committee meetings as required to ensure full
communication of matters relating to the audit The overall
performance of the auditor Is reviewed annually by the Audit
Committee, taking into account the vtews of management,
and feedback 1s provided when necessary to senior members
of KPMG unrelated to the aucht This activity also forms
part of KPMG's own system of quality control The Audit
Committee also has discussions with the auditor, without
management being present, on the adequacy of controls
and on any judgmental areas These discussions have
proved satisfactory to date The scope of the forthcoming
year’s audrt 1s discussed in advance by the Audit Committee
Audit fees are approved by the Audit Committee after
discussions between the businesses and KPMG
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Rotation of the audit partner's responsibilities within KPMG
Is required by their profession’s ethical standards There will
be rotation of the audit partner and key members within the
audit team as approprate

Assignments of non-audit work have been and are subject to
controls by management that have been agreed by the Audit
Committee so that audit Independence 1s not compromised
In summary, these procedures are as follows

= Audit related services as auditor, this 1s the main area
of work of KPMG and its associates If any additional
support I1s required, this 1S considered competitively,

+ Tax consulting in cases where they are best suited, the
Group engages KPMG and its assocrates but the Group
also uses other tax consultancies Significant pieces of
tax work are evaluated competitively, and

« @Genera! and systems consulting all significant consulting
projects are subject to competitive tender

Cther than audit, the Chief Financial Officer 1s required to give
pnor approval of work camed out by KPMG and its associates
In excess of a predetermined threshold Part of this review

1$ to determine that cther potential providers of the serices
have been adequately considered These controls provide
the Audit Committee with confidence in the independence
of KPMG n their reporting on the audit of the Group

Relations with shareholders

Dialogue

The Board 1s committed to mantaining good
communications with shareholders Other than during
close penods, the Executive Chairman and Chief Financial
Officer maintain a regular dialogue with institutional
shareholders throughout the year and give presentations
to Instituticnal shareholders and analysts immediately after
the announcement of the Group's half year and full year
results The Group also encourages communications with
pnvate shareholders throughout the year and welcomes
ther participation at shareholder meetings

The Group maintains a corporate website (www regenersis
comy), which comphes with AiM Rule 26 and contains a
range of Information of interest to institutional and private
nvestors including the Group’s annual and half year reports,
trading statements, press releases and all regulatory
announcements relating to the Group

Constructive use of the AGM

The Beard wishes to encourage the constructive use of

the Company's AGM for sharehelder communication

The Chairman of the Board and the chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nominations Committees will be avallable
to answer questions at the forthcoming AGM As with
previous prachce, resolutions will be proposed on each
substantially separate i1ssue and the level of proxies cast
for each resolution will be avallable at the AGM

Regenersis Plc | Report and Accounts 2012
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Remuneration Committee and advisers
The Committee determines on behalf of the Board

the Company's policy on the remuneration and terms

of engagement of the Executive Directors and Senior
Managers Executive Directors attend by invitation only
when appropriate and are not present at any discussion
of theirr own remuneration

The members of the Remuneration Committee and details
of attendance at the meetings are disclosed in the table in
the Corporate Governance report on page 18

The Committee members have no personal financial
interest, other than as shareholders, in the matters to be
decided They have no conflicts of interest ansing from
cross-directorships or from being involved m the day-to-day
business of the Group With the exception of Tom Russell,
the Committee members do not participate in any bonus,
share option or pension amangements Tom Russell 1s a
partner in Hanover Investors Management LILP, whichis a
recipient of share options under the Incentive Share Plan
discussed below

Remuneration policy

The Group operates in a highly competitive environment
For the Group to continue to compete successfully, itis
essenttal that the level of remuneration and benefits offered
achieve the objectives of attracting, retaining, motivating
and rewarding the necessary high calibre of individuals at
all levels across the Group

The Group therefore sets out to provide competitive
remuneration to all ts employees, appropnate to the
business environment in the market in which it operates
To achweve this, the remuneration package 1s based upon
the following principles

« total rewards should be set to provide a far and attractive
remuneration package,

s appropnate elements of the remuneration package
should be designed to reinforce the link between
performance and reward, and

+ Executive Directors’ incentives should be aligned with
the interests of shareholders

The remuneration strategy 1s designed to be in ine with the
Group’s fundamental values of faimess, competitiveness and
equity and also to support the Group's corporate strategy

A cohesive reward structure consistently applied and with
links to corporate performance 1S seen as cntical in ensunng
attainment of the Group's strategic goals

The Group also seeks to align the interests of Executive
Directors and senior employees with those of shareholders,
by giving the former opportunities and encouragement to
build up a shareholding interest in the Company through
long-term incentive plans

Report and Accounts 2012 | Regensersis Plc

Remuneration of Executive Directors
Elements of remuneration
The Executve Directors’ total remuneration currently consists of

* Fixed elements, compnsing basic salary, benefits and
pensions, and

* Performance-related elements compnising performance-
related bonus and long-term performance arrangements
satisfied by share cptions

Each of the above elements of remuneration 1
explained below

Basic salary

Basic salaries are set by the Remuneration Committee on an
annual basis after takung into consideration the performance
of the individuals, therr levels of responsibility and rate of
salary for similar positions in comparator companies

Benefits in kind

These principally comprise car benefits, ife assurance and
membership of the Group's healthcare insurance scheme
These benefits do not form part of pensionable earnings

Pensions

The Group makes defined contributions on behalf of the
Executive Directors {excluding the Executive Chairman} into
the Group's personal pension plan The amounts paid in the
financial year are set out in the Directors’ emoluments table
on page 24

Annual performance-related bonuses
Performance-related bonuses for the Executive Directors
are contractual and linked to the Group's reported headline
operating profit Terms and conditions are based on the
recommendations of the Remuneration Committee

Long-term incentive arrangements

Performance Share Plan

The Company operates a Performance Share Plan {'PSP’)
which the senior management of the Group participate in
The Company has set up an Employee Benefit Trust ('EBT’)
which has subscribed to sharesin the Company, over which
the trustees make awards of options to employees

The conditions and performance criteria governing the PSP
are as follows

*  Awards will be granted to acquire shares at no cost to
the employees,

*  Awards permissible under the scheme are subjecttoa
maximum of 75% of basic salary,

* Awards would be performance-tested after three years,
with 50% vesting on Regenersis’ total shareholder retumn
{'TSR’) percentage out-performance of the AIM industnal
Goods & Services Index and 50% vesting on cumulative
headline operating profit exceeding a predetermined
target over the three year peniod,

* The Committee will, in all cases, retain discretion to
ensure that, as a condition for the release of shares, the
underlying overall performance of the Company has been
satisfactory, and
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* The PSP also contains certan earlier vesting provisions On 1 July 2011 the Remuneration Committee granted an
where the participant leaves the Company for reasons of il award under the ISP, in respect of 8 3% of the increase in
heatth or early retirement or if there 1s a change of control  shareholder value Of this, 6 3% were awarded to Hanover

Investors Management LLP Matthew Peacock and Torn

Russell have an interest n this arrangement as employees

of Hanover lnvestors Management LLP

This scheme 1s now closed, and no further awards will be
made under it

incentive Share Plan .

On 1 July 2011, following the recommendation of the Service agreements

Remuneration Committee, the Board approved an incentive  The two Executive Directors have rolling service agreements
share award agreement to establish the Regenersis Incentive  with the Company The agreement with the Chief Financial
Share Plan (‘the ISP") Officer provides for six menths notice on either side

The agreement with Hanover Investors Management LLP
for the services of the Executive Chairman also provides
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Under the ISP, employees (including Executive Directors)
will, at the discretion of the Company, be granted a nght

to acquire shares at their par value, subject to continuing for six months natice
employment and the attanment of the applicable In the event that the Company serves notice to terminate P
performance target the contract of any Executive Director, the Company a
The purpose of the ISP 1s to incentivise key members of Eagongikessc%a;r:y?:;sheal:eo:e';f::g:a’ db:: t'::ﬁ;z:glgrzg g_:
the management team by granting ights to acquire shares portion of the duration of the executive’s employment or &
based upon an increase In shareholder value entitlement to notice =
3
The number of shares in any award under the ISP will be The dates of the contracts are as follows ]
determined as follows &
+ following the end of the performance perod, the Matthew Peacock 19 October 2011
Remuneration Committee will determine whether the Jog Dhody 6 March 2012 A
applicable performance target has been satisfied, and The Committee also deterrmines the terms and conditions Q
the increase in shareholder value, of employment of the Executive Drrectors H
* the award holder will be entitled to a specified percentage - ’ - 5
of that increase in shareholder value, provided that Non-executive Directors’ remuneration g
the performance target had been met - that value 1 Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specified g
dvided by the market value of a share at the end of the term, being an initial 3-year period subject to approval by z
rform d the shareholders at the first AGM after appointment and, 5
performance perno
provided that the Director 15 appotnted at that meeting,
During the year the Remuneration Committee approved re-appointment by shareholders at subsequent AGMs,
the making of additional awards under the ISP to senior such re-appomtment being conditional upon endorsement
management including Executive Directors, in respect of by the Board On termination, no compensation s payable —
3 55% of the increase in shareholder value For this initial other than outstanding fees
award under the ISP the performance target will consist of
the following four elements The following are the Non-executive Directors and the

dates they joined the Board
* the basic target 1s met if the average mid-market closing

pnce of a share over the 30 days prior to 30 June 2014 s Michael Peacock & February 2011
greater than 100 pence, Tom Russell 8 March 2011
+ the additonal target 1s met if the average mid-market Kewvin Bradshaw 31 January 2012
closing price of a share over any 30 day penod pnor to
30 June 2014 1s greater than 150 pence, The Non-executive Directors receive fees set at a level

commensurate with their experience and ability to make

a contribution to the Group’s affars and are set by the

Board as a whole No other incentives, pensions or other

benefits are available to the Non-executive Directors

* the amount of the increase in shareholder value that may it is noted that Tom Russell 1s also a partner of Hanover
be distnbuted under Awards pursuant to this Plan, must Investors Management LLP which 1s the recipient of an
be imited so that in the judgement of the Remuneration Incentive Share Plan award
Committee the total dilution to the ordinary shareholders
due to the incentive share plan when aggregated with the
dilution that may occur under any existing or new share
option schemes, and other awards made by reference to a
calculation of the increase in shareholder value, does not
exceed 12%

* the exit target i1s met if an exit event (being a change of
control of the Company) were to occur, and the pnce per
share in relation to that event 1s greater than 100 pence

The Board may request Non-executive Directors to perform
specific additional work at an agreed per diem rate It would
be the intention of the Board that the independence of such
a Non-executive Director 1s not prejudiced by the nature of
any such additional work

Regenersis Plc | Report and Accounts 2012
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Directors’ Remuneration Report coninue

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and share holdings are given below and form part of the audited financial statements

Compensation
3‘"{},”',,,‘,7,‘,; Bonug umm o‘;'oro:ﬂog: Total Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2011
£1000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £1000 2000
Executive
Matthew Peacock® 125 125 - - 250 83
Jeremy Wilson? {resigned 21 Mar 2012) 128 - 20 106 254 235
Jog Dhody?® (appointed 21 Mar 2012) 55 22 9 - 86 -
308 147 29 106 590 318
Non-executive
Andrew Lee* (resigned 31 Jan 2012) B9 - - - 89 41
Michael Peacock 40 - - - 40 16
Tom Russell® 35 - - - 35 1"
Kevin Bradshaw?® (appointed 31 Jan 2012) 15 - - - 15 -
179 - - - 179 68
Total 487 147 29 106 769 386

! Matthew Peacock's remuneration and fee is paid to Hanover Investors Management LLP for the pravision of his services as Executive Chaiman

2 Remunaration untll dete of resignation from the Board Jeremy Witson remalned employed In a management positlon within Regenersis Fic until 21 Apnl 2012,

* From Date of Appointment

* Remuneration until date of resignation from the Board which includes fees In respect of his wider management role Andrew Lee r ptoyed In a manag pasition
within Regenersis Pic

* Tom Russoell's foe is paid to Hanover Investors Management LLP for the provision of hus services as a Non-exscutive Director

* From Date of Appointment

Directors’ beneticial interests in shares
The interests of the Directors who held office at 30 June 2012 and therr connected parties in the ordinary share capital of the
Company are as shown in the table below

As ot 30 June 2012 As at 30 June 20M
Number Number
Executive
Matthew Peacock® 10,213,351 6,692,108
Jog Dhody - -
Non-executive
Michasl Peacock - -
Tom Russell” 10,213,351 6,692,108
Kevin Bradshaw - -

* Matthew Paacock and Tom Rusaell are indirectty interested In a total of 10,213,351 shares through Hanover Investors Managemant LLP which |s a substantial sharsholder of
the issued share capltal of the Company

This report has been approved by the Board and has been signed on its behalf by

Michael Peacock
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

25 September 2012

Report and Accounts 2012 | Regenersis Plc
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Statements of Directors’ Responsibilities

in respect of the annual report and accounts and the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparmng the Annual Report and the Group and parent Company financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent Company financial statements for each financial year

As required by the AIM Rules of the London Stock Exchange they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent Company financial
statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and farr view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent Company and of their profit or loss for that period In preparing
each of the Group and parent Company financial statements, the Directers are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
« make |udgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
« for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

= for the parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1 inappropnate to presumne that the Group and the
parent Company wilf continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the

parent Company’s transactions and disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent
Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other rregularities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other junsdictions

Regenersls Plc | Report and Accounts 2012
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26 Corporate governance

Sustainability Policy

The Group delivers services to its clients
and their customers that not only further

the cause of sustainability but does soina
way that ensures the Group will continue to

prosper by virtue of doing the right thing.

Regenersis operates a business model that embraces
sustatnability as the core of our service proposition

Our sustainable business practices are cost effective, build
employee and customer loyalty, and drive new business
for the Group We maintain our environmental leadershup
position based on the fundamental building blocks of
sustainability and remain committed to the 3Rs - Reduce,

Reuse, and Recycle Our services extend the productive life of
consumer electronics and reduce unnecessary consumption

We refurbish and repair products to exacting manufacturer's
standards, so that these products can then be reused either

in theur home market or matched to a secondary market

When a product 1s beyond economical reparr, we safely and
responsibly recycle it, recover the materials and ensure they

are put back into use for future products

Report and Accounts 2012 | Regenersis Plc

The Group continues to be committed to its green credentials
and the end-to-end services It manages on behalf of its
clents We have documented Environmental Management
Systems for all our faciities to ensure effective planning,
operation and control of our environmental impacts

These environmentat management systems ensure that we

*  Provide fully auditable and sustainable solutions that
enable whole life cycle management for all the products
we support through repair avoidance, technical reparr,
refurbishment, re-use and recommerce,

* Manage and minimise environmental nsks identified
In our operations,

* Maintain our strong regulatory compliance record,

Assess the environmental performance of key suppliers,
and co-operate with suppliers, customers and business
partners to achieve higher environmental standards,

Encourage sustainable development through business
example and voluntary endeavours, both naticnally and
within the local community, and

¢«  Minimise the impact on the environment of our
operations as related to the emussion of CO, to help
combat chmate change
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of Regenersis Pic

We have audited the financial statements of Regenersis Plc
for the year ended 30 June 2012 set out on pages 28 to 64
The financial reporting framework that has been applied

in the preparation of the Group financial statements Is
applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the EU The financial
reporting framework that has been applied n the preparation
of the parent Company financial statements is applicable
law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members,

as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we rmught state to the Company’s members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for
no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responstbility to anyone other than
the Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities

of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities
Statement set out on page 25, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financral statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view
Our responsibility i1s to audit, and express an opimon on,
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit

of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial
statements i1s provided on the APB’s web-site at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinton

* the financial statements give a true and farr view of the
state of the Group's and of the parent Company's affars
as at 30 June 2012 and of the Group’s profit for the year
then ended,

» the Group financial statements have been property
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

* the parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice,

= the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed

by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion Information given in the Directors’ Report
for the financia! year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are

required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 reguires us to report to you
if, In our opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or

* the parent Company financia! statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

+ certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

* we have not recewed all the informatron and explanations
¢ for our audit

P N Meehan (Senior Stalutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
One Snowhill

Snow Hill Queensway
Birmingham

B4 6GH

25 September 2012

Regenersis Plc | Reportand Accounts 2012
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28 Financial statements

Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2012

2012 20m
Note £'000 £'000

Group revenue 4 139,857 123,837
Headline operating profit 7,754 6,334
Exceptional restructunng costs 8 (4,945) {4,818)
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 14 (239} (502}
Impairment of acquired intangible assets 14 - {371}
Share-based payments 29 {281} (112}
Group operating profit 2,289 530
Share of results of jointly controlied entity 16 (163) 43
Operating profit from continuing operations 2,128 573
Finance income 10 110 26
Finance costs 10 (552) (344)
Profit before tax 1,684 255
Taxation 1 (261) (1,046)
Profit/{loss) for the year 1,423 (791)
Attributable to
Equity holders of the Company 1,423 (770)
Non-controlling interest - {21)
Profit/(loss) for the year 1,423 (791}
Earnings per share
Basic 12 333p {185)p
Diluted 12 331p (185)p
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2012

2012 20m

£'000 £'000
Profit/(loss) for the year 1,423 (791)
Other comprehensive Income
Exchange differences ansing on translation of foreign entiies {1,454) 837
Total comprehensive {expense)/income for the year (31} 46
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the Company (31) 67
Non-controliing interest - {21)
Total comprehensive (expensel/income for the year (31} 48

Report and Accounts 2012 | Regenersis Plc
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®
Consolidated Balance Sheet 3
as at 30 June 2012 2
£
2012 2011
Nots £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets o
Goodwill 13 26,936 26,936 %
Other intangible assets 14 1,631 1,915 g
Investments in jointly controlled entities 16 g8 12 g
Property, plant and equipment 15 3,405 3,278 e
Deferred tax 27 1,543 972 §
33,613 33,120 2
Current assets °
Inventory 17 6,556 6,625 -
Trade and other receivables 18 18,608 17,351 g'
Current tax asset - 32 3
Cash 18 2,727 2,876 f?_
27,891 26884 [}
Total assets 61,504 60,004 g
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 20 (20,885) (20,234)
Provisions 25 (816) (589) g
(21,701) (20,823} ]
Non-current habilities g
Borrowings 22 (5,604) (6,700) §
Provisions 25 (3,270) {1,671) 5
Total iabilities (30,575) (29,194) |~
Net assets 30,929 30,810 \
Equrty
Ordinary share capital 28 896 896
Share premium 28 19,702 19,702
Merger reserve 28 3,088 3,088
Translation reserve 28 168 1,622
Retained earnings 7,075 5,502
Total equity / 30,929 30,810

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonised for 1ssue on 25 September 2012

They were signedop itg behalf by

Regonersis Plc | Report and Accounts 202
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2012

Astributable to equity ghare holders
Share Share Marger Lt Retained MNon- ding
capital premium ressrve reserve samings interests Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £1000 £'000

Balance as at 30 June 2010 896 19,702 3,088 785 6,208 43 30,722
Comprehensive Income
Leoss for the year - - - - {770) 21} {791)
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign entities - - - 837 - - 837
Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity
Recognition of share-based payments - - - - 64 - 64
Disposal of non-controlling interests - - - - - {22) 22)
Balance as at 30 June 2011 896 19,702 3,088 1,622 5,502 - 30,810
Comprehensive inccme
Profit for the year - - - - 1,423 - 1,423
Qther comprehensive income:
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign entities - - - (1,454) - - (1,454)
Transactions with owners recorded
directly in equity
Recognition of share-based payments - - - - 150 - 150
Balance as at 30 June 2012 896 19,702 3,088 168 7,075 - 30,929
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2012

MEJAIBAC sSBuU|sNg ‘l

saupweach ejoiodion

2am2 2011

Note £'000 £'000
Profit/(loss) for the year 1,423 (791)
Adjustments for
Net finance charges 10 442 318
Tax expense 11 261 1,046
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 15 1,507 1,539
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 15 242 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 14 570 400
impairment of intangible assets 14 549 -
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 14 239 502
Impaiment of acquired intangible assets 14 - an
Share of JV profit 18 163 -
Garmn on disposal of subsidiary 6 - (335)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 15 29 34
Share-based payments expense 29 281 12
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 5,706 3,196
Increase in inventories (291) (2,089)
Increase in receivables (2,798) (3,093)
Increase in payables and accruals 1,431 2,978
Increase In provisions 1,816 2,260
Cash flows from operating activities 5,864 3,252
Interest received 111 26
Interest paid (259) (284)
Tax paid {775) (610}
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4,941 2,384
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15 (2,220) {1,325}
Purchase and development of intangible assets 14 {1,103 {1,042)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,323) (2,367)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings 24 (1,236) (6,500)
Drawdown of borrowings 24 - 6,700
Net cash used from financing activities (1,238) 200
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 382 217
Other non cash movements - exchange rate changes (531) 116
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 2,876 2,543
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 19 2,727 2,876
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,727 2,876
Bank borrowings (5,604) (6,700)
Net debt 23 (2,877) (3,824)
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32 Financilal statements

Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012

1. General information

Regenersis Plc 1s a Company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Comparues Act 2006 Details of its registered
office 15 published on page 14, whilst the nature of the Group’s operations and principal activittes are set out in the Business
and Financial Review on pages 6 to 13 These financtal statements are presented in thousands pounds sterling, which is the
functional currency of the Group and Parent Company Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set
outin note 2

2. Accounting policies

21 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the EU {"Adopted IFRS")

The financial statements of the parent Company have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (“UK GAAP®) and presented from page 28

Changes in accounting policies

The standards, changes to existing standards and interpretations listed below have been enacted and adopted by the
Group 1n the periad in the preparation of these financial statements They have not had a significant impact on the Group's
accounting

Improvements to IFRS -
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures - changes relating to the definition of a related party

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures — Amended to add an explicit statement that the interaction between qualitative
and quantitative disclosures better enables users to evaluate an entity’s exposure to nsks ansing from financial instruments

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — Amended to clanfy that a reconciliation from opening to closing balances i1s
required to be presented in the statement of changes in equity for each compenent of equity, and also to allow the analysis
of ndwvidual Other Comprehensive Income Iine tems by component of equity to be presented in the notes Previously, such
analysts could only be presented in the Statement of Changes in Equity

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been
applied in these financial statements were in1ssue but not yet effective

Effective for periods
Comparny name Principal activity of the company beginning on or after
IAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income 1 July 2012
IAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets 1 January 2012
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2013
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financtal Statements 1 January 2013
IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
IFRS 11 Jomnt Arrangements 1 January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013

The Group does not consider the adoption of these standards will have any material impact on its financial statements

The financial statements are prepared under the histoncal cost convention, except where the measurement of batances at
fair value is required as set out below The accounting policies below have been consistently applied to all penods presented
in these consolidated financial statements

22 Going concermn
As highlighted in note 26 to the financial statements, the Group meets its day to day working capital requirements through
a bank facility which i1s not due for renewal until October 2015

Further information on the Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position 15 set out in the Business and Financial Review on pages 6 to 13 Further information on the
financial position of the Group, its cash flows, iquidity position and borrowing facihies 1s also described in this review
In addition note 26 to the financial statements includes the Group's objectives, polictes and processes for managng its
capital, and its exposures to credit sk and liquidity nsk
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The Group's forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that
the Group should be able to operate within the level of its current faciity

After making enquinies, the Board have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
n preparing the annual report and accounts

23 Basis of consolidahon

The consolidated financial statements aggregate the results, cash flows and balance sheets of Regenersis plc (“the
Company”) and its subsidiary undertakings (together the “Group”} drawn up to 30 June each year A list of the Company’s
prnncipal subsidiary undertakings 1s given in note 16 The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired durng a financial
year are included from the date of acquisition The financial statements of subsidianes are prepared in accordance with the
Company’s accounting policies and to coterminous balance sheet dates Regenersis {Bucharest} SRL and Regenersis Rus
have a statutory year end of 31 December Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses
ansing from intra-group transactions are ebminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements On acquisition of a
subsidary, applicable assets and labilities existing at the date of acquistion are reflected at therr fair values

Non-controlling interests In the net assets of consohdated subsidiaries are dentified separately from the Group's equity therein
Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the onginal business combination and the share
of the changes in equity since the date of the combination Losses applicable to the non-controlling interest that are in excess
of the non-controlling interest in the subsidiary's equity, are allocated against the interests of the Group only If there1s &
binding obhkgation to fund the losses and the Group 1s able to make an additional investment to cover the losses

Subsidianes compnse the entities in which the Group has the rnight te control financial and operating policies and denve
economic benefit from therr activities The financial statements of subsidianes are included in the conselidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until it ceases

2 4 Foretgn currencies

Transactions denomtnated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilihes are translated into sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date The income statements and cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into sterling at the
weighted average exchange rates applicable dunng the year and their assets and habilities are translated at the rates ruling
at the balance sheet date Exchange differences ansing on the retranslation of opening net assets of overseas subsidiares,
together with differences between profit and loss accounts at average and closing rates, are included within other
comprehensive income All other exchange differences are dealt with in the income statement

25 Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's interest in the far value
of the identifiable assets and habilities of a business at the date of the acquisition Goodwill 1s initially recognised as an asset
at cost and 1s subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill is reviewed for impairment
at least annually Any impairment 1s recognised immediately in the iIncome statement and i1s not subsequently reversed

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts
subject to being tested for impairment at that date

26 Impairment

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are reviewed for impairment annually, or whenever there Is
an indication that they may be impaired, by companng the carrying value of the asset, or group of assets, to Its recoverable
amount Assets which do not generate cash inflows independent of other assets are aggregated into cash generating units
{CGUs) and the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs (s esttmated The recoverable amount of an
asset or CGU 1s the hrgher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use

The value in use 15 estimated by calculating the present value of its future cash flows Imparment charges are recognised
in the income statement to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount in the penod in which the
impairment 1s identified

Goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s allocated to each of the cash generating units that 1s expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination
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34 Financial statements

Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

27 Intangible assets

Separately identifiable intangible assets arising on business combinations

Other intangible assets, such as customer contracts, are recognised on business combinations If they are separable or
anise from a legal or contractual nght Separately identifiable intangible assets are amortised over therr expected future lives
unless they are regarded as having indefinite useful lives, in which case they are not amortised, but subject to an annual
impairment tast Customer contracts are being amortised on a straight line basis over five years

Research and development

Expenditure on research and certan development activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it 1s incurred
Any intemally-generated development costs (including software development) are recognised as an asset only If the
following criteria are met

* An asset s created that can be \dentified,

+ [t1s probable, and intended, that the asset created will generate future economic benefits,
* The development costs of the asset can be measured rehably, and

* There 1s availability of adequate resources to complete the devefopment

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the development expenditure 1s recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred Internally-generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight ine basis over
thres to five years once the asset 1s available for use

Software licences

Software licenses are initially measured at cost Cost includes the purchase price of the assets and the directly attnbutable
cost of bringing the asset into its ntended use After initial recognition, the intangible asset 1s carried at cost, less
accumulated amortisation, less any accumulated impairment losses Amortisation 1s charged evenly over the assets’
estimated useful lives, which are between three and five years

28 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it 1s probable that they will result in future economic benefits flowing to the
Group and when they can be measured reliably Depreciation begins when the asset 1s available for use and I1s charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis so as 1o wnte off the cost less restdual value of the asset over its estimated
useful [ife as follows

Leasehold improvements — over the period of the lease or life of the improvements if less

Plant and machinery - 20% per annum
Computer hardware - 33% per annum
Motor vehicles ~ 25% per annum
Fixtures and fittings - 20%-50% per annum

Gains and losses ansing on the disposal of an asset are determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income statement

29 Interests In joint ventures

A Jjoint venture 1s a contractual arrangement whereby the Group undertakes an economic activity that 1s subject to joint
control Jaint control exists when the strategic financial and cperating policy decisicns relating to the activity require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharnng control

The Group's interest in jointly controlled entities 1s accounted for using the equity method Under this method the Group's
share of the profits less losses of jointly controlled entities 1s included in the consolidated incorne statement and its interest
in their net assets i1s included in investments in jotntly controlled entities in the consohdated balance sheet Where the
share of losses exceeds the interests in the entity the carrying amount is reduced to nit and recogrution of further losses

1s discontinued Interest in the entity 1s the carrying amount of the investment together with any long-term loan that, in
substance, forms part of the net investment in the entity

210 Inventones and work in progress

Inventones and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value The cost of inventones 1s based on
the first-in first-out principte and includes all direct expenditure and an appropnate proportion of attnbutable overheads that
have been incurred in bnnging the inventones and work In progress to therr present location and condition Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to be incurred in marketing, seling and distnbution

The amount of any wnte-down of inventones to net realisable value 1s recognised as an expense In the year in which the
wrte-down occurs
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211 Provisions

A provision Is recognised when there 1s a present obligatron, whether legal or constructive, as a result of a past event for
which it 15 probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation Provisions in respect of contingent consideration for acquisitions are made at the
Boards’ best estimate of the likely consideration payable taking account of the performance criteria which affect the level of
contingent consideration

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the llability The unwinding of the discount rate 1s
recogmised as finance cost

A provision for onerous contracts Is recognised when the expected benefits to be denved by the Group from a contract are
lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting its obligations under the contract The provision 15 measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the centract
Before a provision 1s established, the Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with the contract

212 Revenue recognition and cost of sales

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and 15 net of value added tax and other
duties Revenue is recogrised when the delivery of services has taken place in accordance with the terms of the sales, and
there I1s certainty on the value and recoverability and nsk has transferred to the customer

Revenue generated from revenue sharing agreements Is recogrised in full in revenue with the revenue share due to third
parties recognised as a cost of sale

Revenue share compnses amounts payable to network operators in respect of phones which are sourced from them and
which are sold or recycled by the Group to independent third parties

The following factors are relevant to the accounting treatment for this revenue shanng business
* The Group takes full title and ownership of the products prior to onward sale or recommerce,

« The Group is exposed to the stock-holding nsks such as loss or damage The Group also bears
the nsk of stock obsolescence,

¢ The Group processes and decides on the best route to market for the phones,

* The Group has full discretion in identifying customers for onward sale or recommerce of products
and establishes the seling price to these custemers, and

* The Group bears the full credit nsk of these sales
Given the above factors the gross inflows are recognised as revenue

213 Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable I1s based on the taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group’s habiity for current tax s calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
habilittes in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit, and
1S accounted for using the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax iabilities are generally recogrised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised Such assets and llabilities are not recognised if
the temporary differences anse from the goodwill or from the iniial recogmition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and labilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes and
associates, and interest in joint ventures, except where the Group 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of the deferred tax asset 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax i1s calculated at the tax rates expected to apply in the penod when the liability 1s settled or the asset 1s realised
Deferred tax I1s charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to tems charged or credited directly to
equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in equity
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36 Financial statements

Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

2 14 Employee benefits

Pensions

The Group offers defined contribution pension arrangements to certain employees Payments to defined contnibution
pension schemes are expensed as incurred The Group does not operate any defined benefit pension arrangements

Share-based payments
Some employees are granted share options which may, if certain performance cntena are met, allow these employees to
acquire shares in the Company The specific schemes are detailed in note 29 to the accounts

The farr value of options granted after 7th November 2002, are recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding
increase in equity The fair value 1s measured at grant date and spread over the period durnng which the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the options The farr value of the options granted is measured using an option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and condittons upon which the options were granted The amount recognised as an expense
Is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest except where variations are due only to share prices not
achieving the threshold for vesting

Cash settled option schemes

The Group grants options to certain employees which, on vesting, are settled in cash These are detalled in note 29 to the
accounts and are referred to as Phantom Share Schemes An option pricing model is used to ascertain the far value of the
option at each balance sheet date A charge i1s recognised and included within share-based payments with a corresponding
liability, based on the expected number of options to vest, pro-rated for the vesting penod that has expired

215 Own shares held by EBT

Transactions of the Company-sponsored EBT are treated as being those of the Company and are therefore reflected in the
parent Company and Group financial statements In particular, the trust's purchases of shares in the Company are debited
directly to equity

2 16 Dividends on shares presented within equity

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as a hability at that date to the extent that they are
appropnately authonsed and are no longer at the discretion of the Company Unpaid dividends that do not meet these
critena are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

217 leases

Lease arrangements entered into by the Group are assessed at the inception of the lease and classified as erther an
operating or a finance lease A lease s classified as a finance lease If it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
incidental ownership to the lessee All other fease arrangements are classifted as operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are recognised in the iIncome statement on a straight ine basis over the pericds
of the leases Asssets acquired under finance leases are capitalised and the outstanding future lease obligations are shown
under creditors

218 Govermnment grants

Govemment grants are included within accruals and deferred income Capital grants are credited to the income statement
over the estimated useful ives of the assets to which they relate Other grants are credited to the income statement in the
same penod as the costs to which they relate are incurred

2 19 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial labilities are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

Equnty instruments
Equity instruments 1ssued by the Group are initially recorded at the proceeds receved, net of direct 1ssue costs

Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-denvative financial instruments include investments, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recewvables, trade and
other payables and borrowings

« (ash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances and short term deposits Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purposes of the consolidated cash flow staterment

« Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at far value Subseqguent to initial recognition they are measured at
amortised cost
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* Trade and other payables are recogruised initially at fair value Subsequent to imitial recognition they are measured at
amortised cost

» Bank borrowings Interest-bearnng bank loans and overdrafts are stated at the amount of the proceeds received, net of
financing costs {including faciiity fees and redemption prermia) Financing costs are amortised over the expected term of
the loan s as to produce a constant rate of retum over the pered to the date of expected redemption Ininstances where
the Company has an early redemption option, the term over which financing costs are amortised 1s the period to the earliest
date the option can be exercised, unless there 1s no genuine commercial possibility that the option will be exercised

2 20 Headline operating profit

‘Headline operating profit’ I1s the key profit measure used by the Board to assess the underlying financial performance of
the operating diwvisions and the Group as a whole ‘Headline operating profit' 1s stated before amortisation or impairment
of acquired intangible assets, exceptional restructuning costs, share-based payments and the share of resuits of jointly
controlled entity

2 21 Adjusted earnings per share

An adjusted measure of earnings per share has also been presented, which the Board consider gives a useful additional
indication of the Group’s performance Adjusted eamings are stated before amortisation or imparment of acquired
mntangible assets, excephonal restructuring costs, acquisition costs and share-based payments

3. Critical judgements and estimations in applying the Group’s accounting policies
31 Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting polictes, management makes vanous judgements that can significantly
affect the amounts recognised In the financial statements The crtical judgements are considered to be the following

* The transfer of the risk and rewards of ownership with respect to inventones,
«  Whether the Group acts as principal or agent in recognising revenue,

* Whether the Group capitalises development expenditure, and

« Assessment of provision required to meet a present obligation

32 Eshmahons

Impairment of Goodwill

Determining whether goodwill Is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units to which
goodwill 1s allocated The value in use calculation includes estimates about future financial performance and long term
growth rates and requires management to select a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present valug of those
cash flows The key assumptions used in the impairment raview are disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements

Defarred tax

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of unutiised losses and other temporary differences ansing In
certan of the Group’s businesses This requires management to make decisions on the recoverability of such deferred tax
assets based on future forecasts of taxable profits If these forecast profits do not materialise, or there are changes in the
tax rates or to the penod over which the losses or temporary difference might be recognised, the value of the deferred tax
asset will need to be revised in a future penod

The Group has losses for which no value has been recogmised for deferred tax purposes in these financial statements, as
future economic benefit of these temporary differences Is not probable If appropnate profits are earned in the future, the
temporary difference may result in a benefit to the Group in the form of a reduced tax charge in a future penod

4. Segmental reporting

Internal reporting uses three reporting segments — Emerging Markets, Western Europe and Advanced Solutions which
reflect the way the business 1s managed and reviewed Emerging Markeats include the existing operations in Poland,
Romanta, Turkey and South Africa, Westem Europe incorporate UK (excluding Glenrothes), and German businesses whilst
Advanced Solutions aggregate the Group's businesses promoting techniques in remote diagnostics, automation, mitigation
and avoldance

The Group continues to deliver world class services to its customers in the fields of service and repair of smart phones
and other consumer electronic devices, coupled with asscciated services including customer call centres, warranty
management and insurance replacement programmes
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38 Financial statements

Notes to the Accounts

for the year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

Revenus Share of JV Revenus Ravenues Share of JV Revenue
2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
£'000 £'000 £1000 000 £1000 £1000
Revenue from external customers
Emerging Markets 42,318 {1,002} 41,316 44,095 (852) 43,243
Western Europe 83,938 {4,204) 79,734 63,102 - 63,102 w
Advanced Sclutions 18,807 - 18,807 17,492 - 17,492 :
Total 145,063 (5,208) 139,857 124,689 {852) 123,837

Within Emerging Markets and Western Europs, there are three customers which individually account for more than 10%
of Group’s revenue and had total revenues of £18,533,000, £19,949,000 and £19,417,000 (2011 £19,984,000, £6,687,000
and £10,335,000 respectively) These are significant in the context of the Group although we contract under several service

agreements
212 2011
£'000 £'000
Headline segment proht
Emerging Markets 4,580 5,080
Western Europe 2,01 1,515
Advanced Solutions 2,905 2,426
9,576 9,021
Corporate costs {1,822) (2,687)
Headline operating profit 7,754 6,334
Exceptional restructuring costs {4,945) (4.819)
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets (239 (502) !
Imparrment of acquired Intangible assets (Western Europe) - {371)
Share-based payments (281) (112) !
Group operating profit 2,289 530 '
Share of results of jointly controlled entity (163) 43
Operating profit fram continuing operation 2,126 573
Net finance expense (442) (318)
Profit before tax 1,684 255
&gm s astets I'I‘QSEI!I:I; m"nm
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Emerging Markets 19,145 18,686 4,063 4,362
Western Europe 19,752 20,834 11,186 11177
Advanced Solutions 18,393 16,489 4,803 2,918
57,290 56,009 20,052 18,457
Corporate 4,214 3,995 10,523 10,737
61,504 60,004 30,575 29,194
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Capltal Capltal Depreciation & praciation &
g -t S S~
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Emerging Markets 1,182 402 769 767

Western Europe 772 978 952 1,147

Advanced Solutions 948 980 565 499

2,902 2,360 2,286 2,413

Corporate costs 421 7 30 28

3,323 2,367 2,316 2,441
Geographical information
The following geograptucal information 1s based on the location of the business units of the Group
2012 2011
£'000 £'000

Revenue from external customers

UK 75,503 62,181

Germany 22,995 16,923

Poland 28,881 35,717

Rest of Weorld 17,684 9,868

145,083 124,689

Less share of jointly controlled entity (5.206) {852)

139,857 123,837
2012 2011
£000 £'000

Inter-location revenue

UK 98 294

Potand 2 143

Rest of World 71 114

171 551
2012 2011
£'000 €000

Non-current assets

UK 30,674 30,387

Non-UK 2,938 2733

33,613 33,120
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Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

5. Operating profit

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Revenue 145,063 124,689
Less share of jointly controlled entity {5,206) (852)
Group revenue 139,857 123,837
Cost of sales (106,206} (93,034)
Gross profit 33,651 30,803
Headline administrative expenses (25,897) (24,469)
Headline operating profit 71,754 6,334
Other administrative expenses {5,465) (5,804)
Share of results of jointly controlled entity {163) 43
Operating profit 2,126 5713
Administrative expenses 31,362 30,273
6. Exceptional restructuring cosis
2012 2011
£'000 £1000
Redundancies and restructuring 2,466 2,394
Onerous lease and dilapidation provision 1,961 2,260
Unsuccessful acquisitions 518 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiary - {335)
Onerous contracts - 500
4,945 4,819

During the year substantial restructuring costs including prowvisions for onerous property leases and redundancy costs have
been incurred in UK This completes the review undertaken by the Directors to consolidate key activities and markets, and
recognises the more efficient processes now followed

The Group had an unsuccessful acquisition within the year, and has expensed all the related costs

In the prior year, the Group disposed of its 75% interest i Regenersis Environmenta! Services Europe Limited {which had
net habilihes) for nominal consideration, thus realising a profit of £335,000

7. Profit for the year

Profit for the year has been amved at after charging/{crediting)

2012 2013

£'000 £'000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment - owned 1,507 1,539
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 29 34
Amortisation of intangible assets 809 902
Government grant income - {352)
Cost of inventones recognised as an expense 67,591 54,365
Staff costs (note 9) 45,019 45,346
Net foreign exchange losses 263 104
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8. Auditors' remuneration
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 25 25
The audit of the Company's subsidiartes pursuant to legislation 126 m 9
Total audit fees 151 136 8
Non-audit fees %
Tax services 35 35 ‘9:
Other services a7 21 §
Non-audit fees 72 56 %
223 192 ©
%’!
9. Staff costs g
2m2 2011 o
Number Nurnber =}
Average numbers employed g
Production 2,067 2,216 E
Sales and business development 15 15 (gD_
Administration 319 293
2,401 2,524
c
F
2012 201 @
£'000 £'000 =
Aggregate employment costs g
Wages and salanes 39,269 38,650 =1
Social security costs 4,423 4,760 S
Share-based payments 281 112
Pension and other staff costs 1,046 824
45,019 45348

Key management personnel have been identified as the Board and the Group Operations Board Remuneration of key
management personnel is as follows

212 20m
£'000 £'000

Key management personnel costs
Short term employee benefits 2,036 1,885
Post employment benefits 68 99
Share-based payments 150 64
2,954 2,048

The remuneration of individual Directors 1s detalled on page 24
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Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

10. Finance cosis and finance income

212 2011

£1000 £000
Bank interest receivable and similar income 110 26
Total finance iIncome 110 26
Interest payable on borrowings
Bank loans and overdrafts 473 307
Other finance costs 79 37
Total finance costs 552 344
Net finance charge 442 318
11. Tax

2012 2011

£'000 £000
Current tax
UK corporation tax - -
Overseas tax 883 765
Adjustments in respect of pnor years 7 (135)
Total current tax charge 866 630
Deferred tax
UK (524) 438
Overseas 43 (139)
Adjustments in respect of prior years {124) 117
Total deferred tax (credit)/charge {note 27} (605) 416

261 1,046

UK Corporation tax Is calculated at 25 5% (2011 27 5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year Taxation for other
Jjunsdictions I1s calculated at the rates prevalling in the respective junsdictions

The Group's total ncome tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the Consolidated Income Statement
as follows

2012 201
£'000 £'000
Profit before tax 1,684 255
Tax at standard UK corporation tax rate of 25 5% (2011 27 5%) 429 70
Effects of
Permanent differences 416 223
Rate differences {219) (390)
Adjustment in respect of previous penods {143} {18)
Brought forward losses no longer recogrised - 458
Current year losses not recognised 640 1,064
Relief on research & development costs {166) {361)
Other tirmng differences (696) -
261 1,046
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Factors that may atfect future current and total tax charges

The 2012 budget on 21 March 2012 announced that the UK corporation tax rate will reduce to 22% by 2014 A reduction
in the rate from 26% to 25% (effective from 1 Apnl 2012) was substantively enacted on § July 2011, and further reductions
to 24% {effective from 1 April 2012 and 23% (effective from Apnl 2013) were substantively enacted on 26 March 2012 and
3 July 2012 respectively

This will reduce the Group’s future current tax charge accordingly and further reduce the deferred tax assets and habilities
recognised, which have been based on a tax rate of 24%, as this was substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

The Group's future tax charge Is dependent on several factors which does not make it possible to quantify the full
anticipated effect Factors expected to effect the tax charge going forward include the extent to which the UK carries
out development work which qualifies for R&D tax credits, Income assigned to the 10% patent box regime (effective from
1 Apnl 2013}, the proportion of profits eamed in higher or lower tax junsdictions, and the ability to use tax losses

esupuieaoh eypiodion

12. Earnings per share (EPS)

EPS summary %
Basic earmngs per share 333 (1 85) S—
Diluted earmings per share 33 (185) ‘g
Adjusted earnings per share 1385 12 26 3
Adjusted diluted earrings per share 1375 1207 i
Pancepe Pancaur 2 =g
share share £:000 £'000 ]
Basic EPS/profit/(loss) for the year 333p {185)p 1,423 (791) g
Reconcihation to adjusted profit g
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 041p 0 B6p 177 364 a
Imparment of acquired intangtble assets - 063p - 269 >
Exceptional restructuning costs 852p 1129p 3,637 4,819
Unsuccessful acquisition costs 093p - 394 - ___
De-recognition of deferred tax asset - 107p - 458
Share-based payments 0 66p Q 26p 281 112
13.85p 12.26p 59012 5,231
Number of shares ﬁ 6’3101
Werghted average number of ordinary shares 44,820 44,820
Treasury shares excluded (2,150) {2,150)
Weghted average number of ordinary shares (basic) 42,670 42,670
Effect of share options on issue 335 675
Waeighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) 43,005 43,345

The options granted under the Incentive Share Plan are not dilutive as at 30 June 2012 therefore are excluded from the
diluted EPS calculatron
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Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

13. Goodwill

Total
£°000

Cost

At 30 June 2010, 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2012 33,517

Accumulated impairment losses

At 30 June 2010, 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2012 6,581

Net book value

At 30 June 2010, 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2012 26,936

The recoverable amount of each cash generating unit (CGU) has been determined from the value in use, calculated with
reference to the net present value of its future cash flows

Cash flow projections are based on the latest budget and strateg:c plan for each CGU approved by the Board Beyond this,
the projections extend to 20 years using a long-term growth rate for each CGU which the Board considers to be specific to
the business This 1s not considered to exceed the post-war real annual average growth in GDP, in the markets the Group
serves and the assessment to impairment i1s not considered sensitive to changes in this assumption

In establishing the discount factor for each CGU, the Group’s weighted average cost of capital was calculated and
then flexed according to CGU geographical spread, customer concentration, length of customer contracts and risk of
loss, breadth of services offered, ionger term profitability trend, unique selling points, expected business change and
growth opportunity

The Board believes that, even in the current economic conditions, any reasonable possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amounts are based would not cause the CGUs carrying amount to exceed the
recoverable amount

The growth and pre-tax discount rate applied, as well as carrying value by CGU are as follows

Growth rate Discount rate Growth rate Discount rate

22 2012 2011 201

% % % b

Emerging Markets 30% 12% 30% 1M1%
Western Europe 20% 14% 20% 12%
Advanced Solutions 25% 11% 25% 14%

Carmrying value Carrying value

2012 2011

£:000 £'000
Emerging Markets 9,928 9,928
Western Europe 6,002 6,002
Advanced Solutions 11,006 11,006
Total Goodwill 26,936 26,936
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14. Other intangible assets
Customer Devslopment Software
cantracts expandiurs licencea Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cost o
At 30 June 2010 2,605 1,465 2,285 6,355 ,§
Additions - 832 210 1,042 B8
Disposals - - 4 {) b
Exchange movement - - 105 105 %
At 30 June 2011 2,605 2,297 2,596 7,498 g
=
Additions - 730 373 1,103 2
Disposals - - {428) (428)
Exchange movement - {3) {150) (153) -
At 30 June 2012 2,605 3,024 2,391 8,020 §
(%)
Accumulated amortisation g
At 30 June 2010 1,493 699 2,033 4,225 %
Charge for the year 502 207 193 902 3
Impairment 3n - - an z
Disposals - - 4) 4
Exchange movement - - 89 89
At 30 June 2011 2,366 906 2,311 5,583 g
Charge for the year 239 289 281 809 2
Disposals - - (428) @8 | &
Impairment - 540 9 549 g
Exchange movement - - (124) (124) g
At 30 June 2012 2,605 1,735 2,049 6,389
Net book value at 30 June 2012 - 1,289 342 1,631 ———
Net Book value at 30 June 2011 239 1,391 285 1,915
Net book value at 30 June 2010 1,112 766 252 2,130

The Group capitalised development expenditure of £0 7m (2011 £0 8m) predominantly on its ongoing investment in the
development of in-field testing and remote chagnostics, for which the Group has signed its first contract and 15 perforining
trials with other customers

An impairment charge of £0 5m was recognised relating to restructunng in the UK {refer to note 6) and in the prior year
acquired custormer contracts were impaired following the loss of a sigrificant customer in Glasgow
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Notes to the Accounts

for the year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

15. Property, plant and equipment

g Lo mashod mi;ud‘mha:: Computer Motor Fixturea and rotal
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 30 June 2010 2,606 7,214 4,402 80 1,818 16,117
Additions 112 375 533 - 305 1,325
Disposals (412) {967) (589) (51) {51) {2,070)
Exchange movement 184 3N 194 3 148 920
At 30 June 2011 2,490 7.013 4,540 32 2,217 16,292
Additions 869 629 410 - 312 2,220
Disposals (65) {89} {131) 21) (18) (324)
Exchange movement {(269) 477} (223) (2) (191) (1,162)
At 30 June 2012 3,025 7,076 4,596 9 2,320 17,026
Accumulated depreciation
At 30 June 2010 1,644 6,124 3,783 58 1,216 12,825
Charge for the year 439 4N 425 3 181 1,539
Disposals (379) (963) {586) {36) (51) (2,015)
Exchange movement 101 297 168 3 96 665
At 30 June 2011 1,805 5,949 3,790 28 1,442 13,014
Charge for the year 396 456 445 2 208 1,507
Disposals (65) 7N {118) (21) (14) {295)
Impairment - 47 125 - 70 242
Exchange movement {164) (365) (191) {(2) (125) {847)
At 30 June 2012 1,972 6,010 4,051 7 1,581 13,621
Net book value at 30 June 2012 1,053 1,066 545 2 739 3,405
Net book value at 30 June 2011 685 1,064 750 4 775 3,278
Net book value at 30 June 2010 962 1,090 619 22 599 3,292

There are no assets held under finance leases

An imparrment charge of £0 2m was recognised relating to restructuning in the UK {refer to note &)
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16. Investments

The Group's principal subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures are as follows

Owmnership
percantage by
the Group & at
Compsny name Principal activity of the company 30 Juns 2012 Country of Incorporstion
Held directly by the Company
Regenersis (Glasgow) Ltd Technical reparr, repair avoidance, customer 100% Scotland
support services for mobile phones
Regenersis (Bucharest) SRL * Techmcal reparr, customer support services 100% Romania
and product end of ife management for mobile
phones and electronic equipment
Regenersis (Group) Ltd Intermedrate Helding Company 100%  England and Wales
Regenersis Digital Care Ltd (UK) Intermediate Holding Company 100%  England and Wales
Regenersis (South Afnca) (PTY) Ltd  Technical repair, repair avoidance, customer 100% South Afnca
support services for mobile phones
Regenersis Istanbul Teknoloy Customer support services for mobile phones 100% Turkey
Danigmanid Limited Sirketi
Regenersis Trustees Ltd Employee Benefit Trust 100%  England and Wales
Regenersis Trustsub Ltd Employee Benefit Trust 100%  England and Wales
Regenersis Sweden Lirmited Intermediate Holding Company 50%  England and Wales
Held indirectly by the Company
Regenersis (Glenrothes) Ltd Technical repair, customer support services and 100%  England and Wales
diagnostic testing tools for electronic equipment
Regenersis (Warsaw) Sp Z co Techmical reparr, customer support services 100% Poland
and product end of life management for mobile
phones and electronic equipment
Regenersis GmbH Techmcal reparr, custorner support services 100% Germany
and product end of Iife management for
electronic equipment
Regenersis (Sommerda) GmbH Technical repair, customer support services 100% Germany
and product end of Iife management for
electronic equipment
Regenersis (Huntingdon) Ltd Techmcal reparr, repair avoidance and 100%  England and Wales
calt centre providing technmcal and
customer support
Regenersis {Distnbution) Ltd Insurance fulfiment services and distnbution 100%  England and Wales
of mobile phones
Regenersis Inc Customer support and diagnostic 100% USA
testing services
Regenersis Digital Care Sp Z oo Warranty extension and insurance fulfilment 100% Poland
Regenersis Digital Lifestyle Warranty extension and insurance fulfilment 50% Sweden
AB (Sweden)
Regenersis Nordic AB Techrucal reparr, customer support services 50% Sweden
and product end of ife management for
electncal equipment
Regenersis Rus” Jointly controlled entity — technical repair of 50% Russia

electronic equipment

MBIAIBAO SSOUISNg “

asupweaohb eiodion

Allinvestments are in the ordinary share capital of the subsidianes

All subsidianes are included in the consolidated results of the Group

"Year end date 1s 31 December
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Notes to the Accounts

for the year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

The Group has a 50% interest in the joint ventures Regenersis Rus, and Regenersis Nordic AB The Group's share of joint

venture assets, labilities, ncome and expenses are as follows

Regenersis Regenarxis
Swaden Ltd RUS Total Total
202 2012 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current assets 2,939 281 3,220 1M
Current labilities (2,818) {185) (3,003) (172)
Non-current assets 414 - 414 -
Non-current habilittes {540) - {540) -
Net assets {5) 96 o1 19
Income 4,205 1,002 5,207 852
Expense (4,545) {923) (5,468) {809)
Net income/{expense) of joint ventures (340) 79 (261) 43

The Groups' hability 1s Iimited to the investment value in the entity, therefore the losses within the Sweden joint venture are
only recagnised to the extent that they write the total investment to nil

The reconciliation of total nvestment in joint ventures including workeng capital loans 1s as follows

Regenarsis Ragenerals Regenersis Regenersia
Swaden Ltd Sweden Ltd RUS RUS
202 20m 2012 2m
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 July - - 100 57
Share capital Investment - - - -
Working capital investment 242 - - -
Retained (loss)/profit (242) - 79 43
At 30 June - - 179 100
17. Inventories

2012 2011
£'000 £1000
Raw matenals 3,947 5,036
Work In progress 07 620
Finished goods 1,702 969
6,556 6,625

18. Trade and other receivables
2012 2011
£'060 £4000
Trade recevables 14,881 12,734
Less provision for doubtful trade recevables (217) (232)
Trade receivables net of provision 14,664 12,502
Prepayments and accrued income 3,944 4,849
18,608 17,351
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A reconcihation of the movement in the prowision for doubtful trade receivables i1s as follows

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
At 1 July 232 435
Provision created 107 57
Amounts written off as uncollectable {73) {224)
Amounts recovered during the year {49} (36)
At 30 June 217 232
19. Cash and cash equivalents
202 2011
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 2,727 2,876
20. Trade and other payables
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Trade payables 7,563 7,825
Other taxes and social secunty 685 2,036
Other payables 3,437 3,080
Accruals and deferred income 9,200 7,293
20,885 20,234

21. Government grants

The Group has in prior years been awarded government grants in the UK and in Germany

The grants have been awarded to contribute towards expansion costs at repair centres and are conditional on incremental
employment and capital investment No income is recognised within admirustrative expenses in the year in relation to these

grants (2011 £352,000 relating to a closed grant)

22. Bank borrowings

2012 20m
£'000 £000

Due after more than one year

Secured bank loan 5,604 6,700

Repayable

In the third to the fifth years inclusive 5,604 6,700

The bank borrowing 1s secured on the majority of the Group's assets for the duration of the facility The facility available to
the Group as at 30 June 2012 totalled £23 25 million (2011 £15 million), of which £6 0 million (2011 £7 0 milien) had been
drawn down in ¢cash, resulting in an unutiised faciity of £17 25 milion (2011 £8 0 milhon) The Group negotiated a bormrowing
facility of £15 milion in the previous year as part of the operationat and strategic review On 31 January 2012, the facility was
increased to £23 25 million ta support the future acquisition activity of the Group The facility expires on 31 October 2015,
and borrowing costs of £396,000 (2011 £300,000} are set-off against the amount owing at year end The amendment to

the facility is not constdered a substantial modification of terms and as such the incremental arrangement costs have been

capitalised agamst the borrowing balance
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50 Financlal statements

Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

23. Net (debt)/cash

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Cash 2,727 2,876
Bank borrowings (non-current) (5,604) (6,700)
(2877 (3,824)
24, Reconciliation of movement in net debt
Nat debt at Repayment of Other non cash Nat debt st
1 July 2011 Cash flow borrewings items 30 Jure 2012
£'000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank and Iin hand 2,876 382 - (531) 2,727
Borrowings (6,700} 236 1,000 {140) (5,604)
(3,824) 618 1,000 671) (2,877)
25. Provisions
Onerous Lenses Ditapidations Total
£'000 £000 £'000
At 1 July 2011 1,960 300 2,260
Created dunng the year 1,848 113 1,961
Paid dunng the year (145) - (145)
Unwinding of discount factor 9 1 10
At 30 June 2012 3,672 414 4,086

Prowisions relate to a penod of between one and eight years and are analysed between current and non-current as follows

2012
£'000

Current 816
Non-current 3,270
4,086

Further to the prior year contract loss in Glasgow and the completion of the UK restructure (highlighted in the Business
and Financial Review on page 7), the onerous lease provisions cover residual lease commitments in the UK expinng in
August 2019 and April 2017 The dilaptdation provision represents the Directors best estimate
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26. Financial instruments - risk management

Capital nsk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concems while

maximising return for stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance Q

The Group’s capital structure 1s as follows 'g

2mz 201 a
£'000 £'000 &

Total borrowings 5,604 6,700 g

Cash and cash equivalents 2.727) (2,876) S

Net debt 2,877 3,824 s
.4

Equity holders of the parent 30,929 30,810

Geanng ratio (net debt to equity) 009 1 012 1

Debt 1s prmanly used for financing acquisitions and working capital
Under the banking facility the Group is subject to certain financal covenants relating to

- Leverage - the ratio of total net debt to EBITDA
~ Interest cover - the ratio of EBITDA to total debt costs
- Capital expenditure — any obligation treated as such under accounting principles

-
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The Group has comphed with these financial covenants
Categones of financial instruments

The following assets and labilities at carrying values mest the definition of financial nstruments and are classified according o
to the following categories ;?’
Loans and receivables g
Trade and other recevables 18,608 17,351 5
Cash 2,727 2,876 >
Financial assets 21,335 20,227
.

2012 2011

£'000 £'000
Held at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 20,885 20,234
Borrowings 5,604 6,700
Financial habilities 26,489 26,934

Eshmahon of fair values
The carrying value and farr value of the financial assets and financial habilities are considered to be the same with the
following assumptions

For trade and other recevables/payables with a remaining life of less than one year, the carrying amount 1s deemed to
reflect the far value For cash and cash equivalents, the amount reported on the balance sheet approximates to fair
value For borrowing at floating rates, the carrying value 15 deemed to reflect the far value as it represents the pnce of
the instrument in the market place
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Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

Financial nsk management

The main nsks ansing from the Group's financial instruments include market nsk {including foreign currency nsks and
interest rate nsk), hquidity nsk and credit nsk The Group seeks to mimimise the effects of these nisks by developing and
consistently applying Board approved policies and procedures Such policies and procedures are regularly rewewed for
therr appropriateness and effectiveness to deal with changing nature of financia! nsks

Market risk - interest rate nsk
The Group holds cash in a variety of currencies within the business units in order to meet working capital requirements
The banking facility 1s denominated in Sterling

©n 31 January 2012, the Group was successful n negotating an increase to the financing facility, which attracts margins
between 2 00% and 2 75% above LIBOR depending on the ratio of EBITDA to net debt Pror to this penod, the margin
ranged from 1 75% to 2 25% The undrawn part of the facility 1s subject to a charge during its availability computed at 40%
of margin

A change in the UK base rate of 1% would increase/decrease the annual interest charge on the facility drawn down as at
30 June 2012 of £6,000,000 {2011 £7,000,000) by £60,000 (2011 £70,000)

The Board continues tc monitor the exposure to interest rate risk and the requirement to use an interest rate swap
agreement or other financial instruments

Foreign currency risk

The Group executes certain transactions in foreign currencies, pnmarnly in Euros and US Dollars, thus creating some
exposure to exchange rate fluctuations Such exposures are managed by aligning payables and receivables in foreign
currencies around the business

The table below shows the extent to which the Group had monetary assets and labiities denomimated in currencies other
than the local currency of the Company in which they are recorded

Eure denominated USD dencminsted

2012 201 2012 201

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Monetary assets 1,905 3,542 334 K4
Monetary habilities (753) (2,591) (6) (124)
Net monetary asset/{hability) 1,152 951 328 (92)

Sensitivity analysis

This quantifies the iImpact of change in value of assets and llabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of that business unit A 10% appreciation/deprectation of the Euro and the US Dollar against sterling, appled to the
net exposures as at 30 June would give rise to the following gain/loss in the retranslation of these balances

Eurc dencminated USD denominated
2012 201 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Profit before tax — gain/{foss)
10% appreciation of Euro/USD 115 86 33 (9
10% depreciation of Euro/ USD (115) (886) (33) 9

The analysis has been performed using the Group exchange rates at the 30 June 2012 reporting date of 1 24 €/£
{2011 110 €/£) and 1 57 $/£ {2011 160 $/£)

The Group 1s exposed to fluctuations in exchange rates on the translation of net assets and profits eamed by its subsidianes
in Germany, Poland, Romania, Turkey and South Africa These profits are translated at average exchange rates for the year,
which 1s an approximation to the rates at the date of the transaction
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Credit nsk

As detailed in the business review, the top 10 customers (all of which are major international businesses) account for 67%
{2011 69%) of the Group’s revenue and hence there 1s some customer reliance nsk although the tiggest single customer 1s
14% (2011 16%) of revenue and i1s spread over many of ther businesses This 1s distinct from credit sk

At the balance shest date one customer made up of several contracts amounted to 17% {2011 16%) of the Group’s total
trade recevables and accrued mcome balances Over the past year the aging profile has remained strong and as at the year
end 94% (2011 9496) of our trade receivables balances were in terms and therefore the Board beligves these balances do
not present a significant credit nsk which could lead to a loss for the Group

Ageing of trade receivables, net of impaired balances i1s as follows

2012 2m2 2011 2en

£'000 % £'000 %

Neither past due nor impaired 13,785 94% 11,703 94%
Past due but not impaired

Less than 30 days overdue 794 6% 632 5%

30 to 60 days overdue 28 - 68 -

More than 60 days overdue 57 - 99 1%

14,664 100% 12,502 100%

The average credit penod taken on sales s 42 days (2011 41 days)

The Group has provided for specific trade receivables where the recoverability 1s uncertain As at the 30 June 2012 the
doubtful debtors balance was £217,000 {2011 £232,000), of which £6,000 (2011 £41,000) was more than 90 days overdue
The Board believes there 1s no further provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts

Recewvables are wntten off against the i/mparment provision when management considers the debt 1s no longer recoverable

Liquidity nisk
The Group ensures that there are sufficient levels of committed facilities, cash and cash equivalents to ensure that the Group
15 at all tmes able to meet its financtal commitments

The Group had un-drawn funds from its revolving credit facility available of £17 25 millon (2011 £8 millhion)
The table below summanses the contractual matunty profile of the Group's financial labtlitres

202 2012 2012 20m 2011 20m

Etfactive Less than One to five Effective Less than Oneto five

interest rate one year yoars iterest rate one Year YOrs

{%) £'000 £'000 (%) £'000 £'000

Trade and other payables - 20,885 - - 20,234 -
Provisions - 816 3,270 - 589 1,671
Bank borrowings 54 - 7.077 43 - 8,081
- 21,701 10,347 - 20,823 9,752
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Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012 (conhnued)

27. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Recognised
in the income
At 1 July 2011 statacnent At 30 Juns 2012
£'000 £'000 £1000 £'000
Property plant and equipment 584 470 - 1,054
Intangible assets {90) 73 - {17
Short term timing differences 331 (133} (16) 182
Tax losses 147 195 {18) 324
972 605 (34} 1,543
Racognised
In the incoma
At 1. udy 2010 statemant Exchangs At 30 June 2011
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Property plant and equipment 603 (19) - 584
Intangible assets {332) 242 - {00)
Short term timing differences 400 69) - 331
Tax losses 661 {570) 56 147
1,332 (416) 56 ar2

Deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent that they are constdered recoverable against the future profits of the Group
No deferred tax asset has been recognised In relation to taxation on UK losses amounting to £2,914,000 (2011 £1,585,000}

Certain deferred tax assets and llabilities have been offset to the extent permitted by IAS 12 The deferred tax asset balance
as at 30 June 2012 1s made up of a UK deferred tax asset balance of £1,095,000 (2011 £446,000) and an overseas balance

of £448,000 (2011 £526,000)

28. Called up share capital

2012 2012 -0l 2m
Number of Number of
shares £°000 sharss £'000
Authonsed:
Ordinary shares of 2p 59,760,350 1,185 59,760,350 1,195
Allotted, called up and fully pawd
Ordinary shares of 2p 44,820,252 896 44,820,252 896

The Company has one class of ordinary shares, which carry no rights to fixed ncome The holders of ordinary shares are
entitled to receive dividends as declared and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company

Share premium

This anses on 1ssue of the Company’s shares over and above the nominal value of the shares, less any expenses of issue

incurred N 1ssung equity
Marger reserve

The merger reserve anses In respect of the premium ansing on the ordinary shares 1ssued as consideration for the

acquisition of shares in another company
Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences ansing from the translation of the financtal statements

of foreign operations
Employee Benefit Trust (EBT)

Of the 1ssued share capital at 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011, 2,150,000 shares are held by the Employee Benefit Trust

Outstanding options

Outstanding options have been granted to the Directors and employees of the Group under the Performance Share Plan
and the Incentive Share Plan over shares in Regenersis Plc Further details of these are included within Note 29

Details of the share plans and share options held by Directors are included in the Remuneration Report on page 24
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29. Share-based payments

The Group operates an Incentive Share Plan, a Performance Share Plan and a cash-based Phantom Share Scheme

The terms of the Incentive Share Plan and Performance Share Plans are disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Share options 1ssued under the cash-based Phantom Share Scheme vest three years from the date of the grant and
automatically lapse for those employees who leave the company before the third anniversary Options are settled in cash,
which is calculated as the difference between the closing share price on the day that they vest compared to the grant price
The grant price Is set with reference to the average share price over a three day penod up to the date of the grant

Details of share options and phantom scheme awards outstanding at the end of the year are as follows

MBIAIBAC STOUSNY ]
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Scheme mm Share Seneme a,..."é‘é.";'.';.’i Share cheme samwmﬂe'
Exercise price 00p 75 5p 46 Op 39 0p 720p
Earliest year m which options are exercisable 2013 2011 2012 2013 2014
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of

options ogtions options options options

At 30 June 2010 - 250,000 416,675 - -
Granted 1,000,000 - - 66,668 -
Exercised - - - - -
Lapsed - leavers {325,000) (250,000} {100,002) - -
At 30 June 2011 675,000 - 316,673 66,668 -
Granted - - - - 66,668
Exercised - - (300,006} - -
Lapsed - leavers 300,000 - {16,6867) - -
At 30 June 2012 375,000 - - 66,668 66,668

The number of shares granted under the Incentive Share Plan is dependent on the increase in shareholder value in the
three year period from the date of grant to 30 June 2014 As the number of shares to be awarded 1s vanable, it has not been

included within the table above

The fair values for the above options were calculated using the inputs and prncing models outhned in the table betow
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Encarthy Pert Phantom Phantom Phantom Phantom

Share Plan Share Plan Share Scheme Share Scheme Share Scheme Share Scheme

Date of grant 1 July 17 September 1 July 1 July 1 July 1 July

2011 2010 2008 2009 2010 2011

Option pricing mode! used Monte Monte Black Black Black Black

Carlo Carlo Scholes Scholes Scholes Scholes

Fair value of options granted 12 ip 25 6p - - - -
{per share) at date of grant

Farr value of options granted - - - 44 5p 52 1p 252p
{per share) at 30 June 2012

Expected volatility 36% 39% 21% 36% 25% 25%

Risk free interest rate 14% 12% 4 5% 18% 28% 14%

Exercise price (per share) 75 0p 00Cp 75 5p 46 Op 38 0p 720p

Expected dividends - - - - - -

Expected term {years) 3 3 3 3 3 3

Expected departures - - 41% 16% 25% 25%

Settlement Equity Equity Cash Cash Cash Cash
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Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

Total expense recognised in the income statement for each of the schemes and disclosed on the face on the income
statement, was as follows

Performance Share Plan - 64
Incentive Share Plan 150 -
Phantom Share Scheme 13 48

281 12

The lability on the Phantom Share Scheme 1s £182,000 (2011 £51,000), the intnnsic value at 30 June 2012 was £274,000
(2011 £72,000)

30. Commitments

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Minimum lease payments under operating leases
recognised as an expense in the year 2,650 2,433

The Group has outstanding commitments for total future rminimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows

2012 2011
£1000 £'000

Not less than one year 2,842 2,605
Later than one year and not tater than five years 5,872 4,865
Later than five years 1,334 2,147
10,048 9,617

The majority of the leases which the Group has entered into relate to tand and buildings Lease terms range from 3 months
to 8 years

31. Subsecuent events

On 31 August 2012, the Group completed its acquisiion of all of the 1ssued share capital of Plataforma HDM Tecnologica
S A and Plataforma HDM Tecnologica S A de CV and the trade and assets of HDM Plataforma Logistica S L, HDM
Soluciones Integrales de Reparacion S L and HDM Moviltech Servicio Tecnico S L together compnising the entire
operations of the HDM Group of Companies (“HDM")

The nitial consideration of €6 5 million 1s satisfied by €5 85 million of cash funded through the Group’s existing banking
facilities and a further €0 65 million in shares Ordinary shares of 587,571 were 1ssued to the vendor on 31 August 2012

A capped earn-out will be payable on the 30 September 2015 based on EBIT achieved in the year to 30 June 2015 These
detalls were announced at the time of the acquisition

in the year to December 2011, HDM generated revenues of €26 2 militon and net income of €1 2 million with net assets
of €12 1 milion before fair value adjustments as at 31 December 2011

HDM s a leading provider of aftermarket services, including reverse logistics and reparr, to network operators and mobile
telephone manufacturers in Span, Mexico and Argentina HDM's key customers include Telefonica, Samsung and Nokia

The addiion of high-gualty business in Spain, where HDM has a 20% market share in mobile repar, significantly enhances
Regenersis’ European customer proposition The acquisition also provides a strong exposure to new Emerging Markets and
a platform for further future expansion into Latin America

Farr value calculations for this acquisition have not been completed due to the proximity of the completion date to the
published date of these Accounts, and as such have not been disclosed
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32. Related party transactions

Transactions between Regenersis plc and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation

Dunng the year to June 2012, Regenersis Plc advanced a !oan of €250,000 to its jointly controlled entity, Regenersis Sweden
Limited The Groups’ share of the joint ventures net losses were recognised to net this investment to nil Please see further
details within note 16 Within the year Regenersis Plc charged £178,000 in management fees to Regenersis Sweden Limited,
of which £25,000 was outstanding at 30 June 2012

During the year to June 2010, Regenersis Plc advanced a loan of €100,000 to its jontly controlled entity, Regenersis Rus as
aloan, which remains outstanding at the end of the year ended 30 June 2012 {€100,000 outstanding at 30 June 2011)

As at 30 June 2012 Hanover Investors Management LLP held shares in Regenersis Plc totalling 21 95% Both Matthew
Peacock, Executive Chairman, and Tom Russell, Non-executive Director, are employees of Hanover Investors Management
LLP, and a fee s charged for therr services as Executive Directors which i1s disclosed in the Directors Remuneration Report

All transactions with Directors are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 24 and also in the key
management personnel disclosures in note 9
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58 Financial statements

Company Balance Sheet

as at 30 June 2012
2012 2011
Note £'000 £'000
Assets
Fixed assets
Goodwilll 4 6,918 7,761
Tangible assets 5 401 7
Investments in subsidiaries 6 19,188 22,568
26,507 30,336
Current assets
Debtors 7 16,272 10,101
16,272 10,101
Creditors:
Amounts faling due within one year 9 {3,503) (4,772)
Bank overdraft (3,010) (1,981)
Provisions 12 (645) {589)
Net current assets 9,114 2,759
Total assets less current habilities 35,621 33,095
Creditors:
Amounts faling due after more than one year 10 (5.604) (6,700)
Provisions 12 (2,526) (1,671)
Amounts falling due after more than one year (8,130) (8,371)
Net assets 27,491 24,724
Equity
Ordinary share capital 15 BO6 896
Share premium 16 18,702 19,702
Merger reserve 16 3,088 3,088
Profit and loss account 16 3,805 1,038
Equity shareholders’ funds 27,491 24,724

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 25 September 2012

They were signed on its behalf by

Matthew Peac
Executivg' Chairmhan

Compafy numbkr @#5113820

N
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Notes to the Company Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012

1. Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention and in accordance with applicable
accounting standards in the United Kingdom, which have been applted on a consistent basis, and on a going concern basis

Under Section 408 of the Companies Act 20086, the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and
loss account

2. Accounting policies
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Company financial statements are as follows

21 Going concern
As highlighted in note 26 to the Group's financial statements, the Group meets its day to day working capital requirements
through a bank facility which 1s due for renewal on 31 October 2015

Further information on the Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development,
perfoermance and posttion 1s set out in the Business and Financial Review on pages 6 to 13 Further information on the
financial position of the Group, its cash flows, iquidity position and borrowing facilities is described in this review

In addition note 26 to the Group’s financial statements includes the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing
its capital, and its exposures to credit risk and liquidity nsk

The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that
the Group should be able to operate within the level of its current facility

After making enquiries, the Board have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basts
in prepanng the annual report and accounts

2 2 Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill 15 calculated as the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the fair value attnbutable to the
separately dentifiable assets and habilities of the acquired business Goodwill 1s capitalised on acquisition and amortised
on a straight line basis over its estimated useful economic life The life 1s determined after taking account of the nature of
the business acquired and the nature of the markets in which it operates, and 1s typically between 5 and 20 years

23 Impairment

Goodwill and other intangible assets are reviewed for mparment at the end of the first full financial year following acguisition
and, tegether with tangible fixed assets, in other perieds if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable

The impairment review 1s performed by companng the carrying value of the asset or Group of assets, with the recoverable
amount The recoverable amount is higher of net realisable value and the asset’s value in use, which 1s estimated by
calculating the present value of its future cash flows Impairment charges are recogrused in the profit and oss account to
the extent that the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount in the penods in which the impairment s identified

2 4 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumnulated deprecration Depreciation 1s provided at rates calculated to write
off the cost less residual value of each asset on a straight line basis over the asset’s estimated useful life as follows

Leaseho!ld improvement - over the penod of the lease or Iife of the improvements if less

Piant and machinery - 20% per annum
Computer equipment - 339% per annum
Fixtures and fittings - 20%-50% per annum

25 Investments

Investments are stated in the balance sheet of the Company at cost less amounts wntten off Amounts denominated in
foreign currency are translated into sterling at histonical exchange rates Other investments are stated in the Company and
Group balance sheets at cost less amounts wntten off

2 6 Stock and work in progress

Stock and work tn progress 1s stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes all direct expenditure and
an appropnate proportion of attnbutable overheads that have been incurred in bnnging the stock and work In progress

to their present location and condition Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs
to be incurred (n marketing, selhing and distnbution The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value 15
recognised as an expense In the year in which the wnte-down occurs
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60 Financial statements

Notes to the Company Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012 {(continued)

27 Deferred taxation 1
Deferred tax 1s recogrused In respect of all iming differences which have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet |
date where transactions or events which result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a night to pay less tax in the \
future have occurred at the balance sheet date Timing differences are differences between the Company’s taxable profits
and its results as stated in these consolidated financial statements
I
|

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of the retained eamings of overseas subsidianes only to the extent that, at the balance
sheet date, dvidends have been accrued as receivable or a binding agreement to distribute past eamings in future has been
entered into by the subsidiary

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates which are expected to apply in the penods in which timing differences are
expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws which have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s considered more likely than not that there will be suitable
taxable profits from which the underlying timing differences can be deducted or where there are deferred tax llabilities
against which the assets can be recovered

28 Lleases

Lease arrangements entered into by the Company are assessed at the inception of the lease and classified as either an
operating or a finance lease A lease is classified as a finance lease if It transfers substantially all the nsks and rewards of
incidental ownership to the lessee All other lease arrangements are classified as operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are recognised in the profit and loss account on a straight kine basis over the periods
of the leases Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised and the outstanding future lease obligations are shown
under creditors

29 Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the

transaction Foreign currency monetary assets and labilities are translated into sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the

balance sheet date All other exchange differences are dealt with in the profit and loss account ‘

210 Penstons
The Company offers defined contribution pension arrangements to certain employees Payments to defined contribution
pension schemes are expensed as incurred The Company does not operate any defined benefit pension arrangements

211 Provisions

A provision 1s recognised when there s a present obligation, whether legal or constructive, as a result of a past event for
which it 1s probable that a transfer of economic benefits witl be required to settle the obligation and a rektable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation Provisions in respect of deferred taxation are dealt with in the accounting policy
above Prowisions in respect of deferred contingent consideration for acquisiions are made at the Directors’ best estimate of
the likely consideration payable taking account of the performance criteria which affect the level of deferred consideration

Prowisions are determined by discounting the expected {future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the llability The unwinding of the discount rate 1s
recognised as finance cost

A provision for onerous contracts i1s recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract
are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting its obhigations under the contract The provision 1s measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract
Before a provision i1s established, the Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with the contract

2 12 Bank borrowings and financing costs

Interest-beanng bank loans and overdrafts are stated at the amount of the proceeds receved, net of financing costs
(including facility fees and redemption premia) where the intention 1s to hold the debt instrument to matunty Financing costs
are amortised over the expected term of the loan so as to produce a constant rate of return over the penod to the date

of expected redemption In instances where the Company has an early redemption option, the term over which financing
costs are amortised 1s the penod to the earliest date the option can be exercised, unless there 1s no genutne commercial
possibility that the option will be exercised
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213 Share-based payments

The share option programme allows employees to acquire shares of the Company The farr value of options granted after

7 November 2002 are recogrised as an employee expense with a corresponding in¢rease in equity The far value 1s measured
at grant date and spread over the period duning which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options The farr
value of the options granted 1s measured using an option pncing model, taking into account the terms and condiions upon
which the options were granted The amount recognised as an expense I1s adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest except where vanations are due only to share prices not achieving the threshold for vesting

Where the Company grants options over its own shares to the employees of its subsidianes it recognises, n its individual
financial statements, an increase in the cost of Investment in its subsidianes equivalent to the equity-settied share-based
payment charge recogrised in its consolidated financial statements with the corresponding credit being recogrised directly
n equity

214 Own shares held by EBT

Transactions of the Company-sponsored EBT are treated as being those of the Company and are therefore reflected in the
parent Company and Group financial statements In particular, the trust's purchases of shares in the Company are debited
directly to equity

3. Staff costs

The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) was
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2012 201
Number Mumber
Administration 6 6
6 6

The aggregate remuneration compnsed
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Wages and salanes 686 750
Social secunty costs 38 81
Share-based paymenis 281 30
Other penston costs 66 80
1,071 941
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Disclosure of ndwidual Directors' remuneration 1s included in the Remuneration Report on pages 22 to 24

4. Goodwill
Toral
£'000
Cost
1 July 2011 and 30 June 2012 16,854
Amortisation
1 July 20114 9,093
Amortisation charge for the year 843
30 June 2012 9,936
Net book value
30 June 2012 6,918
30 June 2011 7,761
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Notes to the Company Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012 {(continued)

5. Tangible assets

Leasshold Computer Fhrtures
- BT i
Cost
At 1 July 2011 - 7 - 7
Additions 223 134 67 424
Disposals - - - -
At 30 June 2012 223 141 67 431
Depreciation
At 1 July 2011 - - - -
Charge for the year 4 25 1 30
Disposals - - - -
At 30 June 2012 4 25 1 30
Net book value
At 30 June 2012 219 116 66 401
At 30 June 2011 - 7 - 7
6. Fixed asset investments
=
£'000
Cost
At 1 July 2011 24,570
Additions 620
At 30 June 2012 25,190
Impairment
At 1 July 2011 2,002
Charge for the year 4,000
At 30 June 2012 6,002
Net book value
At 30 June 2012 19,188
At 30 June 2011 22,568

The additions withun the year relate to investment in share caprtal of Regenersis South Afnca (PTY) Ltd, Regenersis Istanbul

Teknoloj Danigmanhd Limited Sirketi and Regenersis (Bucharest) SAL

The mpairment recognised within the year 1s in relation to the iInvestment in Regenersis (Glasgow) Ltd ansing from the

substantial restructuning in the UK

7. Debtors amounts falling due within one year

2012 26011

£'000 £'000

Trade recevables 25 -
Amounts due from subsidianes 15,632 9,892
Deferred tax asset (note 8) 89 141
Prepayments and accrued income 526 68
16,272 10,101
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8. Deferred tax assets
Depreciation in
oxcess of f{less
than) capital Cthertiming
allowances differences Total
£1000 £000 £'000
At 1 July 2011 9 132 141
Credit/(charge) for the year 10 (62) (52)
At 30 June 2012 19 70 89

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that they are considered recoverable against future profits of the Company
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to tax losses amounting to £602,000 (2011 £539,000)

9. Creditors amounts falling due within one year

MOJAIBAD ssemsng}
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2012 2011
£7000 £'000
Trade creditors 314 159
Amounts due to subsidianes 2,005 1,958
Accruals and deferred income 1,184 2,655
3,503 4,772
10. Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank loans and other borrowings 5,604 6,700
11. Bank and other borrowings
2012 201
£'000 £'000
Due after more than one year
Secured bank loan 5,604 6,700
Repayable
In the third to fifth years inclusve 6,000 7,000

The terms of the loan are disclosed in the Group accounts In note 22
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64 Financial statements

Notes to the Company Accounts
for the year ended 30 June 2012 (continued)

12. Provisions

Onerous leases Dilapidations Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

At 1 July 2011 1,960 300 2,260

Utilised in the period {145) - {145)
Unwinding of discount 9 1 10
Created in the penod 933 113 1,046
At 30 June 2012 2,757 414 3,171

Provisions are analysed between current and non-current as follows

t'o00

Current 645
Non-current 2,526
At 30 June 2012 3.1M

Further to the contract loss in Glasgow highlighted in the Business and Financial Review on page 7, the onerous lease
provision above covers a proportion of the residual lease commitments up o August 2019, whilst the dilapidation provision
represents the Directors' best estimate for dilapidation on the same bullding

13. Operating lease commitments

Land& Lend &
bulldings buildings
202 2011
£'000 £'000

Lease expiry
Within one year - 34
Between one and five years 145 9
145 43

14. Share-based payments

The Compary operates a share option scheme and Phantomn share scheme The terms of the scheme are disclosed on page 55
to the consolidated financial statements The share options cutstanding are the same for the Company as for the conschdated
financial statements and details of the share options outstanding are disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements

15. Share capital

The movements on share capital are disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements

16. Reserves

Share
premium Merger Retained
account reserve sarnings Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 1 July 2011 18,702 3,088 1,038 23,828
Retained profit for the year - - 2,767 2,767
At 30 June 2012 19,702 3,088 3,805 26,585
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Notice of the Annual General Meeting

Notice i1s hereby given that the seventh Annual General Meeting of Regenersis Plc (“the Company™) will be held at Arden
Partners, 125 Old Broad Street, London, EC2N 1AR on Wednesday 21 November 2012 at noon for the foilowing purposes

Ordinary business
To consider, and If thought fit, pass the following resolutions which will be proposed as ordinary resolutions

1

To receive the Directors’ report, the Directors’ remuneration report and the Company’s annual accounts for the year
ended 30 June 2012, together with the auditors’ report on those accounts

To approve the Directors’ remuneration report for the year ended 30 June 2012

That a final dividend as recommended by the Directors of 11 pence per ordinary share i respect of the financial year
ended 30 June 2012 be approved

To re-appomt KPMG Audit Plc as audrtors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the meeting untll the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company at which accounts are laid

To authorise the Directors to agree the remuneration of KPMG Audit Pic

To appoint Jog Dhody as a Director of the Company, who has been appomnted since the last annual general meeting and
who 1s retinng in accordance with the articles of association of the Company

To appoint Kevin Bradshaw as a Director of the Company, who has been appointed since the last annual general
meeting and who 15 retiring i accordance with the articles of association of the Company

Special business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution 8 as an ordinary resolution and resolutions 9 and 10 as
special resolutions

8

That, pursuant to Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (“the Act”) and in substitution for all existing authorties
under that section, the Directors be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to exercise all powers

of the Company to allot shares in the Company or grant nghts to subscribe for, or to convert any secunty into, shares
in the Company up to an aggregate nominal amount of £302,718 82, provided that (unless previously revoked, varied
or renewed) this authority shall expire on 31 December 2013, or at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
of the Company after passing of this resolution, whichever i1s the earlier, save that the Company may make an offer or
agreement before expiry of this authorty which would or might require such shares to be allotted or such nghts to be
granted after such expiry and the Directors may allot such shares or grant such rnights pursuant to any such offer or
agreement as If such authorty conferred had not expired

That, subject to the passing of resolution 8, pursuant to Section 570 of the Compames Act 2006 (“the Act”) the Directors
be and are hereby unconditionally empowered to allot equity secunities (within the meaning of Section 560 of the Act) for
cash pursuant to the authority conferred by resclution 8 as iIf Section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to such allotment,
provided that such power shall be imited to

(a) The allotment of equity securities in connection with an offer (whether by way of a nghts 1ssue, open offer or
otherwise) to holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company in proportion (as nearly as practicable) to
the respective numbers of ordinary shares held by them, subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the
Directors may deern necessary or expedient to deal with equity secunties representing fractional entitlements or
any legal or practical problems under the laws of any temtory or the requirements of any regulatory body or stock
exchange, and

(b) The allotment of equity securities for cash (otherwise than pursuant to paragraph (a} above) up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £90,815 65,

and (unless previously revoked, varied or renewed) shall expire on 31 December 2013 or at the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting of the Company after the passing of this resolution, whichever i1s the earlier, save that the
Company may make an offer or agreement before the expiry of this power which would or might require equity secunties
to be allotted for cash after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities for cash pursuant to any such offer
or agreement as if the power conferred by this resolution had not expired
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66 Otherinformation

Notice of the Annual General Meeting
{conhtnued)

10 That pursuant to Section 701 of the Companies Act 2006 (“the Act”), the Company be and 1s generally and unconditionally
authonised to make market purchases {within the meaning of Section 693(4) of the Act) of ordinary shares of 2 pence
each in the capital of the Company (“Shares”), provided that

(@)
{b)
()

{d)

{e)

The maximum number of Shares which may be purchased is 4,540,782,
The minimum price (exclusive of expenses) that may be paid for a share 1s 2 pence,

The maximum price {exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for a Share 1s an amount equal to the higher of

{1} 105 per cent of the average of the midd!e market guotations for the Shares as derived from the Daily Official List
for the five business days immediately preceding the day on which the purchase 1s made, and

{n} an amount equal to the lugher of the price of the last Independent trade of an ordinary share and the highest
current independent bid for an ordinary share as denved from the London Stock Exchange Trading System,

Unless previously revoked, vaned or renewed, this authornity shall expire on 31 December 2013 or at the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting of the Company, whichever is the earlier, and

The Company may enter into a contract to purchase Shares before the expiry of this authonty under which such
purchase will or may be completed or executed wholly or partly after such expiry and may make a purchase of
Shares pursuant to any such contract as If the authority conferred by this resolution had not expired

By Order of the Board

M Devin
For and on behalf of Prism Cosec Limited
Company Secretary

24 September 2012

Company Number 05113820

Registered Office
4th Floor
32 Wigmore Street

London

Wil 2RP
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Notice of the Annual General Meeting
Explanatory Notes to the Resolutions

Ordinary Business
Resolutions 1 to 8 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions, and will be passed If more than 50 per cent of shareholders’
votes cast are in favour

Resoluhion 1 To receive the 2012 Report and Accounts
The Directors of the Company {*the Directors”} must present their annual report and accounts of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2012 (the “"Annual Report”) to shareholders for formal adoption at the Annual General Meeting

Resolution 2 To approve the 2012 Remuneration Report

The Remuneration Report must be laid before shareholders for approval The Remuneration Report set out on pages 22 to
24 of the Annual Report describes the Group’s policy on remuneration and gives detaills of Directors’ remuneration for the
year ended 30 June 2012 The vote 1s advisory and does not affect the actual remuneration paid to any individual Director

Resolution 3 To declare a final dividend
A final dwvidend of 11 pence per ordinary share i1s proposed No intenm dividend was paid dunng the year If approved, the
final dividend will be paid on 5 December 2012 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 9 Novermber 2012

Resolutions 4 and 5 To reappoint the auditors and outhorise the Board to determine

their remuneration

The Company s required to appoint auditors at each general meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company,
to hold office until the conclusion of the next such meeting The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of the extemal auditors, KPMG Audit Pic, on behalf of the Board which now proposes their
reappointment as auditors of the Company Resolution 5 also authorises the Directors, in accordance with standard
practice, to negotiate and agree the remuneration of the auditors In practice, the Audit Committee will consider the audit
fees for recommendation to the Board

Resolutions 6 and 7 To appoint the Directors
Two of the five Directors, having been appointed since the 2011 annual general meeting, will retire and seek election at this
year's AGM Therr biographies appear on pages 14 to 15 of the Annual Report

Special Business

As well as the ordinary business of the meeting outlined above, a number of spectal matters will be dealt with at the Annual
General Meeting Resolution 8 will be proposed as an ordinary resolution and will be passed If more than 50 per cent of
shareholders’ votes cast are in favour Resolutions @ and 10 will be proposed as special resolutions For these resolutions
to be passed, more than 75 per cent of shareholders’ votes cast must be in favour

Resolution 8 Directors’ authonty to allot shares

At the 2011 annual general meeting, the Directors were given authonty to allot shares in the Company, and Resolution 8
seeks to renew this authonty for a pertod until 31 December 2013 or at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting,
whichever is the earlier

This resolution would give the Directors authonty to allot ordinary shares, and grant nghts to subscnbe for or convert any
secunty into shares in the Company, up to an aggregate norminal value of £302,718 82 This amount represents one-third of
the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 24 September 2012, the last practicable date prior to the publication
of this document

The Directors have no present intention to allot new shares other than in connection with employee share and incentive plans

Resolution 9 Disapplhication of pre-emption nghts

If directors of a company wish to allot shares in the company, or to sell treasury shares, for cash (other than in connection
with an employee share scheme) company law requires that these shares are cffered first to shareholders in proportion to
their existing holdings

The purpose of Resolution 9 1s to authonse the Directors to allot ordinary shares in the Company, or sell treasury shares, for
cash (1) in connection with a nghts 1ssue, and, otherwise, {i1) up to a nominal value of £90,815 65, equivalent to ten per cent
of the total 1ssued ordinary share caprtal of the Company as at 24 September 2012 without the shares first being offered to
existing sharehalders in proportion to their existing holdings This level of authonty 1s required in order to give the Company
flexibility in the event of acquisition opportuniies and major shareholders will be consulted in advance of the authority
being exercised

The Directors do not intend to 1ssue more than 7 5% of the total issued ordinary share capital of the Company for cash on
a non-pre-emptive basis within any rolling three-year period without prior consultation with sharehelders
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Notice of the Annual General Meeting
Explanatory Notes to the Resolutions (continued)

Resolution 10 Authonty to purchase own shares
Under the Companies Act 2006 (“the Act”), the Company requires authonsation from shareholders if it wishes to purchase
its own shares

Resolution 10 seeks to renew the existing authority given at the 2011 annual general meeting The resolution specifies the
maximum number of shares that may be purchased (approximately 10% of the Company’s 1ssued share capital) and the
highest and lowest prices at which they may be bought

Under the Act, the Gompany can hold the shares which have been repurchased as treasury shares and either resell them

for cash, cancel them, either iImmediately or at a point in the future, or use them for the purposes of its employee shares
schemes The Directors believe that it 1s desirable for the Company to have this choice and therefore intend to hold any
shares purchased pursuant to this authority as treasury shares Holding the repurchased shares as treasury shares will give
the Company the ability to re-sell or transfer them in the future, and so provide the Gompany with additional flexibiity in the
management of its capital base However, In order to respond properly to the Company’s capital requirements and prevailing
market conditions, the Directors will need to reassess at the time of any actual purchase, whether to hold the shares in
treasury or cancel them

The Directors have no present intention of exercising this authonty The Directors intend to keep under review the
Company’s potential to buy back its shares, taking into account other investment and funding opportunities The authonty
will only be used if In the opinion of the Directors this will result in an increase in earmings per share or would otherwise be in
the best interests of shareholders generally

No dividends will be pard on, and no voting nghts will be exercised Iin respect of, treasury shares

As at the latest practcable date prior to publication of this Notice there were no outstanding options to subscribe for
Ordinary Shares
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Notice of the Annual General Meeting
Explanatory Notes to the Notice of Meeting

Enhilement to appoint proxies

1

Members are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of thewr rights to attend and to speak and vote on their
behalf at the meeting A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in relation te the AGM provided that each proxy
1S appointed to exercise the nghts attached to a different share or shares held by the shareholder A proxy need not be
a shareholder of the Company Shareholders who return the form(s) of proxy will still be able to attend the AGM, speak
and vote in person If they so wish Shareholders or their duly appointed proxies are requested to brning proof of identity
with them to the AGM n order to confirm their identity for secunty reasons A shareholder may only appoint a proxy

Qr proxies

(a} Inhard copy form {together with any power of attorney or other written authonty under which it 1s signed or a copy
of such authonty notarnally certified or cerbfied in some other way by the Directors) by post, couner or by hand to
the offices of the Company's registrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, The Pavilions, Bnidgwater Road,
Bristol BS99 62Y, or

(b} Inthe case of CREST members, by utilising the CREST electronic proxy appomtment service in accordance with
the procedures set out below

Appointing Proxies

2

A shareholder wishing to appoint a proxy should complete the accompanying form(s) of proxy and return it/them to
the Computershare Investor Services PLC, The Pavilions, Bndgwater Road, Bnstol BS99 62Y Alternatively, you may
submit your proxy electronically by using the CREST proxy service CREST members may appoint a proxy or proxies
electronically via Computershare (ID number 3RA50) in accordance with note 4 below To appoint more than one proxy,
you may either photocopy the form(s) of proxy accompanying this Notice or contact Computershare on 0870 889 4099 to
request additional personalised form(s) or proxy If more than one proxy appointment i1s returned in respect of the same
holding of shares, the proxy last received by Computershare before the latest time for the receipt of proxies will take
precedence To be valid, any proxy form or other instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited with Computershare
or lodged via the CREST proxy service {in each case)} no later than noon on Monday 19 November 2012

Electronic proxy appointiment through CREST

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies by utiising the CREST electronic proxy appointment service
may do so by utilising the procedures descnbed in the CREST Manual CREST personal members or other CREST
sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service prowider(s), should refer to
their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropnate action on therr behalf

In order for a proxy appointment made by means of CREST to be vahd, the approprate CREST message (a ‘'CREST
Proxy Instruction’) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited {'EUI') specifications
and must contain the information required for such instructions, as descnbed in the CREST Manual The message,
regardiess of whether it relates to the appointment of a proxy or to an amendment to the instructions givento a
previously appomted proxy must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be received by the issuer’s agent

{ID 3RA50} by noon on Monday 19 November 2012 For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time

{as determined by the tmestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the 1ssuer’s agent
Is able to retrieve the message by enguiry to CREST in the manner prescnbed by CREST After this tme, any change of
mstructions to proxies appointed through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through other means

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s) should note that EUl does
not make available special procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal system timings and lmitations
will therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions It 1s the responsibility of the CREST member
concerned to take (or, if the CREST member 1s a CREST personal member or sponsored member or has appointed a
voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s}) such action as shall
be necessary to ensure that a message 1s transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular tme In this
connection, CREST members and, where applicable, therr CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s) are referred,
in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerming practical hmitations of the CREST system and timings

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Un-certificated Secunties Regulations 2001

Joint holders

7

In the case of joint holdings, onty one holder may sign and the vote of the senior who tenders a vote shall be accepted to
the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders, serionty for this purpose being determined by the order in which the
names stand on the register of members in respect of joint holdings
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70 Ofther Information

Notice of the Annual General Meeting
Exptanatory Notes to the Notice of Meeting (continued)

Enhttement to attend and vote

8 In accordance with Regulation 41 of the Un-certificated Secunties Regulations 2001, only those members registered
In the register of members of the Company as at close of business on Monday 18 Novemnber 2012 or, in the event the
meeting I1s adjourned, in the register of members 48 hours before the ime of any adjourned meeting shall be entitied to
attend or vote at the meeting in respect of the number of shares registerad in their name at the ime Changes to entries
in the register of members after close of business on Monday 19 Novernber 2012 or, in the event of the meeting being
adjourned, after 48 hours before the time of any adjourned meeting shall ba disregarded in determining the nghts of any
person to attend or vote at the meeting

Corporate Representatives
9 Any corporation which I1s a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf
all of its powers as a member provided that they do not do so In relation to the same shares

Voting Rights

10 As at 24 September 2012 (being the last business day prior to the publication of this Notice), the Company's 1ssued
share capitai consists of 45,407,823 ordinary shares, carrying one vote each Therefore, the total voting nghts in the
Company as at 24 September 2012 are 45,407,823 of which 2,150,000 are classified as treasury shares

Communicating with the Company in relation to the AGM
11 Except as provided above, shareholders wishing to communicate with the Company in refation to the AGM should write
either to the Company Secretary, Regenersis Ple, 4th Floor, 32 Wigmore Street, London W1l 2RP

12 You may not use any electronic address provided erther in this Notice or any related documents (including the Chairman’s
letter and proxy form), to communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated

Inspection of documents

13 Copies of the Executive Directors’ service contracts and Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment will be available
for inspection dunng normal business hours at the offices of Regenersis Plc, 4th Floor, 32 Wigmore Street, London
W1U 2RP (excluding weekends and pubhc hohdays) They will also be avallable for inspection at the place of the annual
general meeting from 11 45 a m on the day of the meeting until the conclusion of the meeting

Voting Resulis
14 The results of the voting at the AGM will be announced through a Regulatory Information Service and will appear on our
website www regenersis com

Data Protechon Statement

18 Your personal data includes all data provided by you, or on your behalf, which relates to you as a shareholder, including
your name and contact details, the votes you cast and your Shareholder Reference Number {(attributed to you by the
Company) The Company determines the purposes for which and the manner in which your personal data 1s to be
processed The Company and any third party to whom it discloses the data (including the Company’s registrars) may
process your personal data for the purposes of compiling, fulfilling its legal obligations and processing the shareholder
nghts you exercise
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Locations

Registered Office

Regenersis Plc
4th Floor

32 Wigmore Street
London

W1U 2RP

UK

Mexico

Spain

32 Fountain Drive
Inchinnan Business Park
Inchinnan

Renfrewshire

PA4 9RF

1 James Watt Avenue
Westwood Park
Glenrothes, Fife

KY7 4UA

Kingfisher Way
Hinchingbrooke Business Park
Huntingdon

Cambrnidgeshire

PE29 6FN

Waindyke Way
Normanton
Wakefield
West Yorkshire
WFG1TF

Argentina

Calfornia 2082

Central Park, C1289AAN
Capital Federal

Buenos Arres

Germany

An der Gehespitz 90
D-63263 Neu-lsenburg

Bahndamm 39
D-33758 SchloB
Holte-Stukenbrock

Erfurter Hohe 10a
99610 Sommerda

VA

FSC
“wraractyc.Org

M

MexTres Anegas

425 Bodega 7 Col

Nueva Industrial Vallejo

CP 07700

Delegacion Gustavo A Madero

Poland

Janki
Ul Falencka 1B
05-020 Raszyn

Janki
Al Krakowska 38
05-090 Raszyn

Ul 19 Kwretrmia 31
05-090 Raszyn

Romania

92 Timisoara Bvd
Bucharest - 6
061327

Lavochkina Street
House #19
Maoscow

126502

South Africa

Unit C, Alphen Square West
338 George Street
Ranjespark

Midrand

Gauteng

1682

Av Leonardo Da Vinci, 13
Parque Empresanal “La Carpetania”
28906

Sweden
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Impa Is Merkezi No 12 34805 Kavacik
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Istanbul

United States
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Tampa
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33605
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